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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (“the Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present to
shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

During the Year, the Group continued to be exposed to various
market challenges and uncertainties, including but not limited to the
prolonged trade dispute between the United States (the “U.S.”) and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), of which the negative
impact is gradually seen in the financial performance of the Group for
the Year, and the political unrest in Hong Kong which has adversely
affected the operation of some business segments of the Group. To
cope with these challenges, the Group has adopted more stringent
cost control measures to minimize waste in all aspects. At the same
time, the Group has actively adjusted and repositioned the business
objectives of various business segments with continuous input of
financial and human resources to create additional values for the
Group. Detailed analysis and measures adopted by each business
segment are covered in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report.

Looking forward, the business environment continues to be
challenging among all business segments of the Group. Packaging
printing remains one of the most challenging businesses under the
Manufacturing and Sales business of the Group due to the punitive
tariffs imposed by the U.S. under the trade dispute, together with
the volatility of foreign currencies which shifts the supply chain
of all manufacturing activities out of the PRC to other countries.
Coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic is also affecting
people’s daily life and the global economy. Business diversification
is the main development goal of the Group, aiming to balance the
intensifying instability among different sectors globally. At the same
time, the operating goal of the Group is to increase the profit margin
and enlarge the scale of each business segment through continuous
improvement and reinvention of our operation and business model.
The Group will maintain a balance between the risks and rewards
under the current moment of turbulence.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincerest gratitude to all shareholders, investors, business
partners and staff for their continuous support and dedication to the
Group throughout the Year.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN

OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year"”), Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) were exposed to all sorts of market challenges and
uncertainties, including but not limited to the trade dispute between
the United States (the “U.S.”) and the People’'s Republic of China
(the "PRC") and the political unrest in Hong Kong which adversely
affected the turnover of most of the business segments of the
Group. In light of this, the Group allocated more financial resources
to develop the domestic market and adopted various cost tightening
policies to lower the operating costs and therefore, the results of
certain business segments improved as compared with the year ended
31 December 2018 (the “Year 2018").

The detailed business and financial review of each business segment is
stated below.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Revenue from Continuing Operations and Gross
Profit Margin

During the Year, total revenue from continuing operations of
the Group was approximately HK$560.6 million (Year 2018:
approximately HK$592.2 million) and the gross profit margin was
approximately 27.1% (Year 2018: 23.1%). The contribution of each
business segment to the revenue from continuing operations of the
Group is as follows:

Approximate %

BE

RBE-_Z—NF+-_A=+—RHLEE
(leiifj ) Neway Group Holdings Limited
ESEERERAR ([AAAE]) REM
%’D\T(%)ﬁﬁ($%l”ﬁ”ﬁ%@ﬁ%%$ﬁ
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g A RAME ([FE]) 2FOE 5F N
LEBNBUREE RSB XD EB D
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TERR AN R METR SR DABRAR B Ak AN - Rt Eﬁi%i
EZE - \F+ZA=+—RHLFE([=
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REAFE FNEBREFELEEB 2RI
% #9/560,600,0008 L (ZZE— N\FE:
#9592,200,000 7T ) - T EF K49 527.1%
(ZZE—N\FE 23.1%) ZEBDEHA
SEREBFELEEG WA EBIT

Approximate %

to total to total
2019 revenue 2018 revenue
1h 4 W & (¥ Etes
“2-NF BAEA —E-N\F BHBAL

HKS HK$

BT BT

(Re-presented)

(= E3)
Lending Business MEEH 8,491,405 1.5% 7,197,071 1.2%
Manufacturing and Sales Business ~ 2Ui&E M35 & %75 490,000,611 87.4% 525,690,488 88.8%
Music and Entertainment Business &% [ IR & £ % 11,881,910 2.1% 18,133,494 31%
Property Business MEEH 7,310,989 1.3% 7,304,238 1.2%
Trading Business BHEH 42,900,332 7.7% 33,838,152 5.7%
Total revenue g 560,585,247 100.0% 592,163,443 100.0%

* EHEHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

Lending Business

The Lending Business included the financial leasing business in
Shanghai, the PRC and the money lending business in Hong Kong.
For the financial leasing business in Shanghai, no transaction was
made during the Year, and the Group is still in search for deals with
promising potential.

For the money lending business in Hong Kong, due to the political
unrest since the middle of the Year and the global economic
downturn brought about by the trade dispute between the U.S. and
the PRC, the Group tightened its credit control policy for granting
new loans, which adversely affected the number and amount
of new loans granted by the Group. Though the Group received
the majority of interest income as scheduled, its loan portfolio
decreased to approximately HK$67.6 million as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: HK$80.8 million). During the Year, the
interest income from loans increased by approximately 18.0% to
approximately HK$8.5 million (Year 2018: HK$7.2 million), mainly
attributable to an increase in average loan amount by approximately
14.6% in the Year as compared with Year 2018. The segment results
of the Lending Business decreased by approximately 12.6% to
HK$3.7 million (Year 2018: HK$4.2 million), which was mainly due
to the impairment loss of approximately HK$1.3 million (Year 2018:
nil) made during the Year. As the majority of loans receivable were
financed by internal resources and little manpower was required for
the daily operation of the Lending Business, the Group could maintain
low operating costs and achieved a high profit margin accordingly.

Manufacturing and Sales Business

This segment represented the business of manufacturing and sales
of printing products of the Group, such as packaging boxes, labels,
paper products and paper shopping bags. The customer base of this
segment covered the worldwide market.

HEXR%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN

During the Year, the Manufacturing and Sales Business continued to
adopt the same strategy as in Year 2018, including: (i) continuous cost
reduction as well as efficiency and quality enhancement of factories
in the PRC; and (ii) expansion of sales network to clients with higher
profit margin. During the Year, the Group further extended its sales
activities to a new market in the PRC. In order to meet the stringent
quality requirements of our clients, the Group devoted more financial
resources in: (i) the acquisition of new machines for replacing labour
intensive workflows and aging machines and increasing production
capacity and efficiency; and (ii) the renovation and reorganization of
production zones of different product lines in factories in Shenzhen,
the PRC for improving the efficiency and effectiveness and shortening
the lead time between each process.

The segment revenue decreased by approximately 6.8% to HK$490.0
million for the Year (Year 2018: approximately HK$525.7 million),
which was mainly caused by the decrease in orders from certain
existing overseas and domestic clients. In particular, those of
packaging and paper shopping bags decreased by approximately
22.0% and 24.3% respectively. However, the decrease was partially
offset by the increase in sales of label printing of approximately 6.5%.

The segment profit for the Year increased significantly by
approximately 420.8% to approximately HK$14.5 million (Year 2018:
approximately HK$2.8 million). The segment profit margin for the
Year increased to approximately 3.0% (Year 2018: approximately
0.5%), which was mainly attributable to the following factors:

(i) Given the adjusted product mix, the material consumption
ratio decreased by approximately 4.2% as compared with
Year 2018. During the Year, the Group further extended its
sales activities to a new market in the PRC with a higher profit
margin. The adjusted product mix also resulted in a lowered
material consumption ratio because the quantity of products
requiring more materials decreased during the Year. Though
the price of major materials remained stable throughout the
Year, the Group continued to source alternative materials to
lower the overall materials costs. Both of these factors served
to lower the overall material consumption ratio.

(i) The ratio of total staff costs and other related expenses to sales
for the Year remained constant as compared with Year 2018.
During the Year, the Group employed more production staff
members to enhance the efficiency of work processes and the
quality of products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

(iii) The average exchange rate of Renminbi (“RMB") against Hong
Kong dollars depreciated by approximately 3.9% as compared
with Year 2018. The fluctuation brought a positive impact on
the segment profit as most of the production and operating
expenses were denominated in RMB while approximately
63.8% of the sales of this segment was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars or currencies other than RMB.

(iv) The net impairment loss on financial assets and contract assets
decreased by approximately HK$11.1 million to approximately
HK$0.3 million (Year 2018: HK$11.4 million).

Music and Entertainment Business

Revenue from this segment mainly consisted of income from concerts
and shows, artiste management fee income, album distribution
income, promotion income and musical work licensing income.

The revenue of this segment decreased by approximately 34.5% to
HK$11.9 million (Year 2018: approximately HK$18.1 million) and the
segment loss for the Year was approximately HK$7.2 million (Year
2018: approximately HK$2.8 million).

The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the following
factors:

(i) The revenue from concerts and shows decreased by
approximately 57.3% to HK$3.2 million (Year 2018:
approximately HK$7.6 million). Given the Group’s scaled-down
investment in concerts, only one concert was organized by a
subsidiary of the Company for Mr. Ng Yip Kwan during the
Year.

(ii) The musical work licensing income decreased by approximately
47.3% to HK$3.1 million (Year 2018: approximately HK$5.9
million) because no licensing income from the International
Federation of the Phonographic Industry was received during
the Year.

The segment loss further deteriorated to 60.3% in the Year from
15.6% in Year 2018, mainly due to the loss incurred in investment in
concerts and shows and the increase in production costs of physical
albums in the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DT

Property Business
Property development business

During the Year, the Group completed the disposal of its 16.67%
interest in W) REFHESFRAF (unofficial English translation
being Sichuan Yinghua Real Estate Co., Ltd.) (“Yinghua”) through
disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary. Yinghua is a property
development project which was classified as an equity instrument at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) of the
Group as at 31 December 2018.

Yinghua held the land use right of a commercial land parcel in
Chengdu, the PRC and the related property consisted of both
residential and commercial units. On 24 July 2017, the Group served
an exercise notice to Kwong Da Enterprises Limited (“Kwong Da") to
exercise the put option by which Kwong Da should acquire the entire
issued share capital of a subsidiary of the Group which indirectly
owned 16.67% interest in Yinghua at the put option consideration of
RMB30 million. The disposal was agreed to be completed on or before
10 January 2018 originally.

On 10 January 2018, the Group agreed with Kwong Da in writing
to extend the completion date to a day on or before 31 May 2018
(or such other date as may be agreed by both parties in writing) and
Kwong Da agreed and undertook to pay interest on the outstanding
put option consideration of RMB22 million at the rate of 10% per
annum, calculated from 10 January 2018 to the completion date. On
31 May 2018, the Company announced that the disposal of Yinghua
was not completed and the Company was closely following up with
Kwong Da. The Group received interest payment and partial payment
of the put option consideration subsequent to the end of 2018 and
the completion date was further extended to a day on or before 31
December 2018 (or such other date as may be agreed by both parties
in writing).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

Since the disposal was not completed on or before 31 December
2018, the Group, Kwong Da, Kada Capital Investments Limited
("Kada") and the common director of Kwong Da and Kada (the
“Guarantor”) entered into a confirmation deed on 28 March 2019 to
reach a loan agreement and a completion agreement for the disposal
of Yinghua after lengthy negotiation and discussion between related
parties. It was conditionally agreed that the Group would provide a
loan, through Grand Prospects Finance International Limited (“Grand
Prospects”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, to Kada in an
amount sufficient to settle the outstanding put option consideration
and accrued interest payable by Kwong Da to the Group so that the
disposal of Yinghua would be completed upon drawdown of the loan.
The confirmation deed was subject to approval by the shareholders of
the Company. The shareholder approval was obtained on 12 August
2019 and the loan of approximately RMB21.7 million was drawn
down on 13 August 2019. The disposal transaction was completed
on 23 December 2019. The gain on disposal of subsidiary was
approximately HK$11.8 million but partially offset by the fair value
loss of financial derivatives of approximately HK$6.7 million derived
from the put option value. The net financial impact of the disposal
was approximately HK$5.1 million as recorded in the Year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has one property development
project named JEERMH/FFEMERZEBR A F (unofficial English
translation being Qingyuan Zhongging Property Development
Co., Ltd.) ("Zhongqing”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Zhongging holds the land use right of two commercial
land parcels in Qingyuan, the PRC. On 18 June 2014, ;&I £
RIGEERAR AT (unofficial English translation being Shenzhen
Zhongxing Guosheng Investment Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhongxing
Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated
civil proceedings against Zhongqing in the People’s Court of Baoan
District (the “Court”) for, among other matters, the repayment of
the shareholder’s loan contributed by Zhongxing Guosheng in an
amount of RMB23,479,330 (the “Litigation”). On 19 June 2014,
pursuant to an application made by Zhongxing Guosheng for
freezing and preserving the assets of Zhongging with a total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the Court to freeze and
preserve the two land parcels owned by Zhongging from 24 June
2014 to 23 June 2016 (the “Freeze Order”), aiming to ensure that
Zhongging would have sufficient assets to repay the shareholder’s
loan to the Group.
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Two hearings sessions of the Litigation were held on 18 August 2014
and 25 September 2014 respectively. On 15 October 2014, the Group
received a civil mediation document (the “Document”) dated 30
September 2014 from the Court, acknowledging that: (i) the Group
and Zhongging confirmed that Zhongging was indebted to Zhongxing
Guosheng in a sum of RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongqing agreed to
repay to Zhongxing Guosheng a sum of RMB23,479,330, together
with interests accrued from 18 June 2014 to the date of repayment,
which was within 15 days of the effective date of the Document; and
(iii) where Zhongging failed to repay the agreed amount, Zhongxing
Guosheng was entitled to request Zhongqing to pay default interests
calculated at two times of the lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China over the same period.

As advised by the Group's legal advisers in the PRC, the effective date
of the Document was 15 October 2014 and thus, the deadline for
repayment by Zhongging was 30 October 2014. As at 30 October
2014, Zhongging had not repaid the outstanding shareholder’s loan
and accrued interests to Zhongxing Guosheng.

On 27 May 2016, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to
the Court for the extension of the period covered by the Freeze Order
and the application was accepted. The extended period covered by
the Freeze Order started on 13 June 2016 and ended on 12 June
2019. In May 2019, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to
the Court again for the further extension of the period covered by the
Freeze Order and the application was accepted. The extended period
covered by the Freeze Order started on 13 May 2019 and will end on
12 May 2022.

During the Year, no further action was taken by the Group. The Group
will closely monitor the property market and the development plan
of Qingyuan and will take further action if necessary. Currently, the
Group is still seeking the opportunity to dispose of the land parcels.

Property investment business

During the Year, the property investment business included: (i) the
mini storage business operated by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; (ii) the office leasing business operated by a joint venture;
and (iii) the leasing of several commercial units in Hong Kong and the
PRC.
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Mini storage business

The ground floor, 1st floor, 2nd floor and half of the floor area of the
4th floor of a self-owned industrial building in Fanling, Hong Kong
(the “Fanling Building”) are used for the operation of the mini storage
business. As at 31 December 2019, the occupancy rate of the storage
units significantly decreased to approximately 61% (31 December
2018: approximately 83%).

During the Year, in order to meet the safety requirements stipulated
by relevant government authorities, the ground floor and 1st floor
of the Fanling Building were under renovation. As at 31 December
2019, the renovation of ground floor and 1st floor was complete and
pending a final inspection by the relevant government authorities,
which is expected to be delayed due to the coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) pandemic. As there were more storage units on the 1st
floor as compared with that on the ground floor, more storage units
were not available for leasing during the renovation period and the
occupancy rate was affected as a result.

Office leasing business

The office leasing business, being the operation of a business
service centre in Kwun Tong, Hong Kong, was operated by Estate
Summit Limited (“Estate Summit”), a joint venture of the Group
and an independent third party with extensive management and
operating experience. A brand name of “Prime Business Centres” was
established in this regard. After evaluating the financial performance
of the business service centre, the demand and supply condition and
the keen market competition from other business service centres in
Kwun Tong, all contracts with customers were terminated and the
operation ceased in February 2019.

Property leasing and investment

The property leasing business involved two properties. The first one
was a commercial property in Yuen Long, Hong Kong (the “Yuen
Long Property”). It was leased to a related company of the Group
and was operating as a karaoke outlet as at 31 December 2019.
The revenue from such lease remained stable as compared with Year
2018. Approximately 60.7% of revenue of the Property Business was
derived from the Yuen Long Property.

The second property was a commercial property situated in Beijing,
the PRC (the "Beijing Property”). During the Year, the Beijing Property
was leased to an independent third party and the rental income was
approximately HK$725,000 for the Year.
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According to the Group’s accounting standard, the Fanling Building,
the Yuen Long Property and the Beijing Property were classified as
investment properties of the Group and were carried at market value.
A fair value loss of approximately HK$18.0 million was recorded in
“other gains and losses” of the Group during the Year (Year 2018:
fair value gain of approximately HK$10.9 million). The fair value loss
was mainly due to the decrease in market value of the Yuen Long
Property, which was caused by the political unrest in Hong Kong in
the second half of the Year.

Trading Business

Revenue from the Trading Business increased significantly to
approximately HK$42.9 million (Year 2018: approximately HK$33.8
million). The segment profit margin for the Year also improved
to approximately 15.4% (Year 2018: 6.5%). The increase in both
revenue and profit margin was mainly attributable to: (i) an increase in
sales and profit margin of the trading company in Hong Kong arising
from the tightened control on sales discount offered to clients and
an increase in sales to an individual client during the Year; and (i) an
increase in sales of a trading company in the PRC resulted from the
Group's increased resources for the expansion of sales and operation
teams in the PRC, which drove the sales up by approximately 92.4%
as compared with Year 2018. The operation of neighbourhood stores
in the PRC was terminated during the Year.

Securities Trading and Equity Investments Business

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL") as at 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately HK$82.7 million (31 December
2018: approximately HK$114.1 million). During the Year, the
Group recorded a fair value loss of securities trading investments
listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$15.2 million (Year 2018:
approximately HK$35.5 million), a realized loss of approximately
HK$537,000 (Year 2018: approximately HK$8.6 million) and a
dividend income of approximately HK$1.1 million (Year 2018:
approximately HK$2.8 million).
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The Group’s investments as at 31 December 2019 included securities
of 16 listed companies on the Main Board or GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), investment
in an offshore investment fund and a Hong Kong private company.
Each of the Group’s investments has a carrying amount that
accounts for less than 5% of the Group’s audited total assets as at
31 December 2019. The largest investment is the securities in Wang
On Properties Limited (“Wang On") (stock code: 01243), which
represented approximately 0.39% of the total share capital of Wang
On. Wang On is principally engaged in property development and
property investment. Its fair value as at 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$45.7 million, representing approximately 3.9%
of the Group audited total assets as at 31 December 2019.

The Group will carefully study the market and the information related
to prospective investees before purchasing any securities, and will
closely monitor the performance of the investments after purchase
as well as revise the investment strategy in a cautious manner as and
when necessary to minimize the impact of market volatility.

Gaming Distribution Business

After a thorough study of the investment return of this business
segment and the resources allocation among segments of the Group,
the Group has discontinued the operation of this business during the
Year and has classified it as discontinued operation in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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BEEEBNWE DN

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses for the Year mainly comprised the following

items:

Hitlzm RER

AEZHMEERERIZREATIER

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Change in fair value of financial assets FRBHEATEIERZ
at FVTPL (Note d) TRMEENRATEED
(Htitd) (21,840,204) (36,657,753)
Change in fair value of investment properties ¥ & ¥ % &) A F{E & &)
(Note b) (Htztb) (17,966,974) 10,942,146
Gain (loss) recognized in respect of loans HETFELERAER
to joint ventures (Note ¢) e (EE)
(Htetc) 1,775,100 (1,391,092)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note a) HE—XKE QR Z Wz
(Htita) 11,807,968 -
Net foreign exchange gain ANGEE W 2 F 5B 980,712 946,511
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME HEREEN
plant and equipment Wz F 5 619,578 260,845
Total 5t (24,623,820) (25,899,343)
Notes: Bt

On 28 March 2019, Dream Class Limited (“Dream Class”) and Grand
Prospects, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, Kwong
Da, Kada and the Guarantor entered into a confirmation deed for the
settlement and completion arrangement for the disposal of Star Rank
Limited ("Star Rank”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dream Class which
holds 16.67% equity interest of Yinghua, to Kwong Da. Grand Prospects
signed a loan agreement with Kada which holds 83.33% equity interest
of Yinghua to provide a 2-year loan to Kada at an amount equal to the
outstanding consideration of RMB21,693,205, bearing interest calculated
at 10.5% per annum. Upon signing of the loan agreement, the disposal
of Star Rank was completed on 23 December 2019 and Dream Class
ceased control on Star Rank since then.

The fair value loss of investment properties was mainly due to the
Yuen Long Property. For the reason of such loss, please refer to the
business and financial review of the Property Business stated above.
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(@] The Group recognized a gain in respect of its loan to Estate Summit
Limited, a joint venture of the Group (Year 2018: loss).

(d) The change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL consisted of the
fair value loss of securities traded in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited of approximately HK$15.2 million and the fair value loss
of financial derivative derived from Yinghua of approximately HK$6.7
million.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

AEBERG TAEBE S E A FlEstate
Summit Limited 2 B #ER Y= (ZZF—N
FEEE) -

FRBEREATEIE . REEQATE
BHREREBMERGMERARESE
2 EH 2N FEEE 15,200,000 7T &
REEMEELAZESBMITEIARTES
18496,700,00078 7T °

RBEL BFXrERREARRE

TREJIAEER - Z-NF+_A=+—
BT N\F+_A=+—HBHR&L
R -RPLERREERBELEX:

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R-B-—NF MZZE—N\F
t=A=+-8 +=A=+-~

Notes HK$ HK$
Htet BT BTT

Current ratio B =X (a) 2.6 3.0

Quick ratio RE L R (b) 2.3 2.7

Gearing ratio (%) BEERBLE%) (c) 18.5 11.3

Notes: B s

(a) Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total (a) RBLERDNBBESEFEREFNEARSE
current liabilities as at the end of respective year. ERAAREAETHE -

(b) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories (b) RPLEIRBESFERERNERDE
and properties under development for sale by total current liabilities as ERFERGFEERTODERNARDE
at the end of respective year. BEtHE -

(© Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity © BEABLEXDIRESFELERNERE

as at the end of respective year and then multiplying it by 100%. Total
borrowings include: (i) the amount due to a related company, (ii) bank
borrowings, (iii) the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary; and (iv) lease liabilities.

ERAEREERRAI00%E - BIEE
B (VEN—REERRFIA: ()RTTHE
o (N — KM B A F — & IF AR
IR R(WHEAE-
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$232.2 million
(31 December 2018: approximately HK$209.5 million) and total
borrowings of approximately HK$164.0 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$104.3 million).

Total borrowings included: (i) the amount due to a related company,
(i) bank borrowings, (iii) the amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary; and (iv) lease liabilities. The amount due
to a related company was unsecured, payable after five years and
carried interests at fixed-interest rates ranging from 18%-20% per
annum. Secured bank borrowings were payable within five years
and carried interest at the Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus
1.25% to 2.5% per annum. The amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Lease liabilities carried incremental borrowing rates
ranging from 4.4% t0 5.4%.

All borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB and
the majority of cash and cash equivalents was denominated in RMB,
Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars.

The current ratio and quick ratio indicated an ample cash flow and
a stable liquidity position as at 31 December 2019. However, these
ratios had lowered because: (i) bank borrowings were increased to
finance the daily operation of the Manufacturing and Sales Business;
(i) the Group maintained a lower inventory level during the Year;
(iii) a decrease in loan receivables in the Lending Business; and (iv)
a decrease in financial assets at FVTPL mainly due to the loss in fair
value as at 31 December 2019.

The gearing ratio of the Group increased from 11.3% to 18.5% as
at 31 December 2019, mainly attributable to the lease liabilities of
approximately HK$54.6 million arising from the adoption of new
accounting standards Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16
“Leases” during the Year. If the lease liabilities were excluded, the
gearing ratio of the Group remained stable as compared with that as
at 31 December 2018.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MiZR G R D 7
Annual Report 2019

R-ZZE—hE+-_A=+—8 A£EX
BHBETERARRERE2EELNR
232,200,000 (ZE—NF+-_A=+—
H : 49209,500,0008 7T) RIEERELH A
164,000,000 T (ZE— \F+_A=+—
B : 49104,300,000/% 7T ) °

REBEE: (VEMN—KEERARFIE: )R
TTERC GiVEN — KM B A 5 — B IEIEARAR
BRE: MWHERE - BN —RBELF
FEAEEH ARAFEIA BIENT
18% E20% M EEFFEREE - GEMIRTT
BERERAFALN  WREBRITEER
BIN1.25%E2.5% 2 FFR KB B —XK
BENR—ZIEERBERFIEAERF
BRBERERERE - AEABENT44%E
SA%MIBEEER R B -

EEEBAETRARKFE MAZH
BehReEEUARE - BITMETHE

R-ZZE—AFE+_A=+—H RPFLEE
R EBERTENASREREBENRE
BN AT ZFLETHA AR 3)
RITEFEI UARNERHEEXEBNA T
EERHES: (\NEERATERFRE
FEKE: (INMEEBEBEFTR LD Kv)
FEHRRRZZE—NLF+ZA=T—HBA¥
EFEBEIABERRATEYEZEHME
ERD e

R-ZZE—-NE+_A=+—B KAEEEE
BELEAHIZ3%EEI85% ETEAHKA
FERMITSHENET AV B RELELE
165% [l & | = £ & & {54954,600,0007%8
oMM AHEARE B_F—N\F+=A
—+—HEE FEBEEEEBLRERE

on



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

The Group generally finances its operation with cash flows generated
internally and bank facilities obtained in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Taking into account the amount of the anticipated funds generated
internally and the available banking facilities, the Group will have
adequate resources to meet its future capital expenditure and working
capital requirements. The Group will continue to implement a prudent
policy in managing cash balances, thereby maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity level to capitalize any potential business opportunity.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward to the year ending 31 December 2020 (the "Year
2020"), it is expected that the Group will be challenged by all sorts
of adversities as the global market continues to be shadowed by
economic and political risks, including the prolonged trade dispute
between the U.S. and the PRC, the political unrest in Hong Kong
and the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic that will
cast a severe negative impact on every business sector of the world
and significantly slow down global economic growth. In order to
cope with these complicated and difficult situations, the Group will
carefully revise the strategy for all its business segments, diversify and
expand the businesses in a cautious way.

Lending Business

Given the global economic uncertainty and the keen market
competition, the risks and difficulties facing the Lending Business
will be intensified when the Group expands its loan portfolio. The
Group will closely monitor the solvency of borrowers and perform
risk assessments on loan applications prudently. Meanwhile, the
development of the Group’s online money lending platform with
more fin-tech elements, which aims to provide more value-added
services to our clients, especially those seeking personal loans is at the
final testing stage. The Group will also continue to identify new clients
and allocate more financial resources for business development in the
future.
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Manufacturing and Sales Business and Trading Business

Year 2020 will be an extremely challenging year, especially for the
Manufacturing and Sales Business. The demand for and supply of
China-made products have been negatively affected by the punitive
tariffs imposed by the U.S. government which have driven orders
away from the PRC to other Asian countries. The impact is gradually
seen in the financial performance of the Group and is expected to
persist throughout Year 2020. Moreover, the coronavirus disease
2019 (COVID-19) pandemic is affecting people’s daily life and the
global economy. Although the outbreak seems to have stabilized in
the PRC, it is rapidly spreading elsewhere in the world. Unfortunately,
since a viable vaccine is still under development, the growth of global
economy will be jeopardized because more and more countries
or cities enter into lockdown and half the movement of people to
combat this public health emergency. In addition, the impact of Brexit
is unknown and yet to be seen. Accordingly, it will not be easy for the
Group to deliver the annual sales target set for Year 2020.

All of the above factors will negatively affect both export and
domestic sales of this business segment to varied extents. As a result,
the Group will carefully revise its sales strategy in the expansion of
these market segments and spare sufficient cash flow to cope with
any sudden or prolonged adverse situation beyond its expectation.
During the Year, a subsidiary of the Group successfully extended
its sales of labels to a new market with a higher profit margin and
promising market potential in the PRC by adopting advanced printing
technologies. The Group decided to expand the production lines
of the new product in a self-owned factory in Shenzhen in Year
2020, and certain portions of the factory will be renovated to meet
the requirements of a fully automated workshop for high quality
products. The Group also intends to acquire new printing machines
and ancillary equipment for the expanded production line to increase
the production efficiency and lower the defect rate in production
activities. After taking production needs and clients’ demands into
consideration, the renovation will start in April 2020 in phases. The
Group plans to fund these plans by its internal resources and/or
proceeds to be raised in the proposed rights issue (as referred to on
page 26 of this report).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

Quality management and enhancement and credit control on the
receivables will be the top priorities of the Manufacturing and
Sales Business in Year 2020. The Group adopted a new quality
management policy during the Year and satisfactory results were
recorded. The importance of quality management continues to be
communicated to all levels of staff members to raise their awareness
of good quality. For credit control on the receivables, the Group will
closely monitor the collection of receivables and be caution for any
risk of bad debt may arise of our customers. Meanwhile, the Group
will also spare dedicated resources to expand the luxury packaging
and paper product which enjoy a higher profit margin. Although
economic activities are expected to slow down due to the coronavirus
disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic, the Group will take this
opportunity to diversify into the target market sectors with tightened
and prudent control on operating costs.

In addition, to cope with the challenges experienced by the printing
industry and to maintain the profitability of this segment, the
Group will continue to step up its efforts on the following aspects:
(i) efficiency and effectiveness enhancement by streamlining the
production process of its factories to reduce operation and production
wastage; (i) talent recruitment, provision of value-added services and
continuous upgrade of its technology infrastructure, under which a
new enterprise resources planning system has been installed and is
under a trial run in the Group's factory in Shenzhen; (iii) procurement
of alternative materials, verification of their quality and negotiation
with vendors for more favourable terms and; (iv) market expansion to
cover high value products and explore any long term cooperation or
joint venture opportunities with other industry players with production
facilities in other Asian countries to further diversify the risks arising
from the trade dispute between the U.S. and the PRC in a caution
manner; and (v) allocation of more resources to facilities upgrade and
recruitment of skilled labours to meet the various requirements of
clients. All the strategies adopted by the Group will further equip it
with the strength and core competence necessary to tackle unknown
challenges in the coming years.

For the Trading Business, the Group will continue to spare more
resources to expand and develop the sales team in Hong Kong and
the PRC so as to broaden the clientele and optimize the product mix.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DT

Music and Entertainment Business

In Year 2020, the Group will increase its financial resources to
expand the entertainment business in the PRC whereas that for the
Hong Kong market will be reduced accordingly. The Group has been
contracted to produce a famous overseas talent show and it will work
with independent parties to film the show in the Greater Bay Area of
the PRC. Although promotional activities of this TV show have been
delayed by the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic, the
Group, together with the independent parties mentioned above, will
resume the production of the show when the pandemic subsides.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to devote financial resources
to produce and release physical albums and, if think fit, invest in
potential projects in the PRC and overseas.

Property Business

In respect of the property development business, apart from the
possible disposal or development of the commercial land parcels
held by Zhongging in Qingyuan as mentioned in the business and
financial review section of the Property Business above, the Group is
also seeking cooperation opportunities with third parties to develop
the industrial land located in Qingyuan in these two years. At the
beginning of Year 2020, the Group took an active role to discuss and
evaluate the potential cooperation with an independent third party
who referred a biomedical industrial park project to the Group. At the
moment, the Group is still negotiating and working on the details of
cooperation with this potential partner and it is very likely for both
parties to reach a final deal for cooperation shortly. According to the
original planning, the land parcel was to be used by the Group as
printing factories. As advised by the potential partner, the Group filed
an application to revise the current planning of the land parcel so
that it can be redeveloped into an industrial park for rental or sales
separately in the future. The Group has received the approval from the
local government and will make disclosure on the cooperation details
in due course.

The Group plans to construct one block of industrial building on the
land parcel and the construction is expected to commence by mid-
2020. The construction of the new industrial building will cause no
impact on the future cooperation with the potential partner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

In respect of the property investment business, the Group completed
the renovation of mini-storage spaces on the ground floor and 1st
floor of the Fanling Building during the Year and is pending an
approval from relevant government authorities, which is expected
to be delayed due to the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19)
pandemic. The Group will allocate more resources to promote the
mini-storage business and facilitate a rebound of the decreased
occupancy rate due to renovation work during the Year.

Securities Trading Business

The Group expects that the fair value of equity securities listed in
Hong Kong may keep fluctuating in the foreseeable future due
to the volatile global economy. In light of this, the Group will
closely monitor the general market and market data related to the
prospective investees before committing to any securities investment,
and will pay attention to the performance of the investments after
purchasing as well as make necessary adjustment to the investment
strategy in a cautious manner so as to alleviate the impact of extreme
market swings. The Group will reduce its financial resources for the
Securities Trading Business gradually to spare more resources for the
development of other business segments.

Other Business

In view of the significant surge in demand for surgical masks brought
about by the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic, the
Group has decided to establish two production lines of surgical masks
in the Fanling Building to meet the huge demand in Hong Kong and
overseas. As at the date of this report, the renovation of clean room
is in progress and all the machineries and raw materials necessary for
the production of surgical masks are expected to be delivered to the
Fanling Building by April 2020. The mass production of surgical masks
is planned to start thereafter in 2020. Apart from the production
of surgical masks, the Group will also consider to further expand its
presence in the medical and healthcare product industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DT

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's sales and purchases are principally denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars. Except for RMB, there
was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of Hong Kong
dollars and U.S. dollars during the Year. The management will closely
monitor the foreign exchange rate risk of RMB and identify significant
adverse impact (if any) it may cause to the Group’s operations in the
PRC. The Group will consider using appropriate hedging solutions
when necessary. The Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose during the Year and it did not have any outstanding
hedging instrument as at 31 December 2019.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property, plant
and equipment amounted to approximately HK$66.7 million (Year
2018: approximately HK$48.0 million). The capital expenditure for
the Year was mainly attributable to the acquisition of machineries
for production in the PRC, the renovation work of two factories in
Shenzhen and the construction work conducted on the industrial land
in Qingyuan.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$20.3 million (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$5.7 million) which had been contracted for but had not been
provided for in the financial statements for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment. The Group did not have any capital
commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that
had been authorised but not contracted for in both reporting periods.
The Group expects to finance the capital commitments by internal
resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR D

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged leasehold building
and investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$217.0 million (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$233.5 million) to secure the mortgage loan of certain investment
properties and general banking facilities granted to the Group. Save
as aforesaid, no other assets were pledged by the Group as at 31
December 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 1,520
full-time employees (31 December 2018: approximately 1,600).
Total staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the Year
were approximately HK$173.0 million (Year 2018: approximately
HK$175.3 million).

The remuneration schemes of the Group are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees and the reward packages, including discretionary bonus,
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff's and the Group's performance. Apart from salary payments
and contributions to retirement benefit schemes, other staff benefits
include participation in share option scheme and medical insurance
for eligible employees. In-house and external training programmes are
also provided as and when required.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN WK

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(1

(2)

Termination agreement in relation to the lease
agreement and the new lease agreement

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 30 October 2019 and 8 January 2020 respectively. On
8 January 2020, $B8#ENRI CRIN) BR 2 7] (unofficial English
translation being Kam Hon Printing (Shenzhen) Company
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a termination agreement with the landlord, pursuant to
which the lease agreement and supplemental agreements
both dated 30 October 2019 (“Previous Agreements”) are
terminated with effect from 8 January 2020 as the landlord
is unable to fulfill certain conditions which are prerequisite to
the use of the leased premises under the Previous Agreements.
As a result of the termination of the Previous Agreements,
KENRI () BR2AR) (unofficial English translation being
The Greatime Printing (Qingyuan) Company Limited), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new lease
agreement with another landlord on the same date in respect
of the lease of the factory premises situated at Building No.3,
No.8 Shangsha Zhongnan South Road, Shangsha Community,
Chang’an Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC (FBIBERAREMRZHE E & 75 B &85 358
1) for a term of 5 years.

Proposed rights issue

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 10 January 2020, 31 January 2020 and 28 February
2020 respectively. On 10 January 2020, the Company
proposed to raise gross proceeds of approximately HK$101.46
million (before deduction of the estimated costs and expenses
to be incurred) on the basis of two (2) rights shares for every
one (1) share held on the record date by issuing 507,278,912
rights shares at the subscription price of HK$0.20 per rights
share. The proposed rights issue will be subject to the approval
of the independent shareholders of the Company at the
general meeting.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

(3

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)

Since January 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) has impacted the global business environment. Up
to the date of this report, coronavirus disease (COVID-19) has
not resulted in material impact to the Group. Pending on the
subsequent development and spread of coronavirus disease
COVID-19, further changes in economic conditions for the
Group arising thereof may have impact on the financial results
of the Group. The extent of effect could not be estimated as
at the date of this report. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the situation of coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
and react actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

(3)
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Corporate Governance Report
TXERBE

The Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

The Company acknowledges the important roles of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company operations. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder
value and investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company is
committed to enhancing and reviewing its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that they align with the latest
development of the Group.

In the opinion of the Board, save for the deviations disclosed in
this Corporate Governance Report, the Company has applied the
principles of and complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to the shareholders
of the Company. Every Director carries out his duty in good faith in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations and
acts in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
at all times.

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight members during the Year and as at
the date of this Corporate Governance Report, which include
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for
independent decision-making.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MiZR G R D 7
Annual Report 2019

Neway Group Holdings Limited® £ £ [&
ERAEBRAR* ([RRF] - EREMNE
AEmBIAEER]ER([EX)S
(EFE])MAERRFTRE_T—N1
FT+A=+—BHLEFE(XFE])Z
FHMAZINALEERRE -

ARPABESTSHRRHARBERE
SIARAIER  UWRBEBRARREREZ
EHELREMTEDEERAR B
FERARHCEEEAFTRERTR
RERREEMREEELTNER
W BB ETAR R8T R X E
astRI(TEERTAI) Fr#EZ TRl
FX - ARRBARBITECEERT
Mo WARERRE  ARERERAAE
Bz &HEER -

EZERA BALKEAREMEE
ZIRBESN RRBIRAFREERAEE
R Rl Z RAINE B TR EA T AT
B2 T RIS -

ExE

B
EZRRAEANAIZEREBER &
BERAREEARA YEARERE
BARBIEBAESARBKIN 28
T-2REFENARA M FLERS
ARRIBRRAEEE L BIR FEHIE
HRE - REFRBERERIER 2
ER RBMTRE - R AUARE R
HER 2 BEBNEITS-

EEgdm
EFERAFERRAEEERREH
HHEEN\EKE  BEMERTES =
FIEMTEFT N =BHIUIFRTES
EZgmARBRER REERL
B FERGFAMELBIIRE -

* ERE



Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Executive Directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky

Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
the following members during the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky

The names of the Directors on the relevant dates are disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer”), is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”). The detailed
relationships among members of the Board are disclosed under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Executives” on pages 49 to 53.

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to (i) the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise; and (ii) the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
existing independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all existing independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by different persons in order to preserve independence and
a balanced judgement of views. The Chairman, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practices and is also
responsible for chairing the meetings, managing the operations of
the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for running the
Company's businesses and developing and implementing the Group's
strategic plans and business goals.

Despite that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman are uncle
and nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the existing non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed for a term of three
years from 5 April 2019 to 4 April 2022, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was
appointed for a term of three years from 19 April 2017 to 18 April
2020, and Mr. CHU Gun Pui was appointed for a term of three
years from 23 June 2017 to 22 June 2020. Save for the above, all
other non-executive Directors have a term of appointment which
commenced from 1 April 2019 and will continue for a period of three
years until 31 March 2022. The term of appointment of each Director
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) and the Listing Rules and
the terms and conditions of their respective letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Bye-laws and the nomination
policy adopted by the Company in December 2018. Please refer to
the paragraph headed “Nomination of Directors” below for further
details of the nomination policy of the Company.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
the legal and regulatory developments and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Briefings
and professional development trainings will be arranged for the
Directors whenever necessary.

Professional Training for Directors

Each of the existing Directors, namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr,
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren,
Mr. WONG Sun Fat, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky, Mr.
CHU Gun Pui and Mr. LAU Kam Cheong confirmed to the Company
that he had complied with provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the
Year by reading all materials provided by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and/or attending trainings on
the topics relating to the updates on the new requirements under the
Listing Rules launched by professional parties.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan joined the Group as the Company Secretary
since 23 August 2010. Acting as the Company Secretary, Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan reports to the Board and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. She has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

Board practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings during the Year. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notices were given.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Board practices and conduct of meetings (Continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information were sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting during the Year to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest development and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also had separate and independent access to
the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. During the Year, draft
minutes were normally circulated to the Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version was open
for the Directors’ inspection.

The Bye-laws contain provisions, with certain permitted exemptions,
requiring Director(s) to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Director(s) or any of their respective associates have a material
interest.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ attendance records

During the Year, the Board held four meetings, two of which were
regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance of the Group. The Company did not
announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the holding
of quarterly meetings necessary.

Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires the independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors to attend
general meetings of the Company and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders. During the Year, (i)
except Mr. WONG Sun Fat who did not attend the special general
meeting of the Company held on 18 April 2019; (i) except Mr. CHU
Gun Pui who did not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 21 June 2019; and (iii) except Dr. NG Wai Kwan
and Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky who did not attend the special general
meeting of the Company held on 12 August 2019, all independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors attended all
general meetings during the Year.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ attendance records (Continued)

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, the Board committees and at the general meetings of the
Company for the Year is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of meetings
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Special Special Annual
General General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
held on held on held on
Audit Remuneration 18 April 12 August 21 June
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee 2019 2019 2019
RZZ-1NE RZIBE-NF RZZ-IF
mA+N\B NB+=ZH AXRA=t-H
#2712 272 B2z
EsEpg Ezg ENEEE FHZEE BREBIKE REEIAE RREFEAZ
Executive Directors BITES
- Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie ~EEBEE 4/4 N/A N/A 01 171 il
(Chairman) (/) TEA TEA
~ Mr. SUEK Chai Hong -BEELE 4/4 N/A N/A 171 11 171
(Chief Executive Officer) (77B483) TEA TEA
Non-executive Directors FHTES
- Dr. NG Wai Kwan ®e® - REHEL 3/4 N/A N/A 1/1 0/1 11
TEA i
~ Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —BRmH L 414 N/A N/A 11 17 17
TER NEA
~ Mr. WONG Sun Fat -EMRLE 414 2 22 0N N 1n
Independent Non-executive BUFHITES
Directors
— Mr. LEE Kwok Wan -ZEELE 44 212 212 171 1/1 11
- Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky it 4/4 212 212 17 0/1 7
—Mr. CHU Gun Pui - REMEE 4/4 N/A N/A 11 1/1 on
TEA TER
Note: W&t

The board meeting of the Company held on 19 August 2019 was attended by
his alternate director.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
was noted by the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

DELEGATION

In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
internal controls and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve a conflict of interests), appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior executives. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by these senior executives and they have the Board's full support
in the discharge of their responsibilities.
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DELEGATION (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the investment
management committee (the “Investment Management Committee”)
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs. All Board
committees are established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAI Sai Wo,
Ricky, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of them was independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding such Director’s remuneration.
Remuneration of each Director is determined by reference to
the Group’s operating results, the duties and responsibilities of
the Director with the Company, the performance of the Director
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer in relation to its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the executive Directors and shall have access to
professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
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DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to review the remuneration of the existing Directors and senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in relation
thereto.

The written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to
shareholders upon request.

Investment Management Committee

For the purpose of effective and timely management of the
investment matters of the Company, and in order to cope with
the Company’s business development in the future, a committee
of the Board known as the Investment Management Committee
was established in March 2014 for identifying, assessing and
analysing all investment opportunities for the Group and to make
recommendations on acquisition and/or disposal of the Group to the
Board from time to time.

The Investment Management Committee comprises five members,
namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, Mr. CHOW Yun Cheung, and Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan throughout the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report, all of whom possess experience and
familiarity with financial and investment analysis.

During the Year, the Investment Management Committee held two
meetings and all members of the Investment Management Committee
attended such meetings.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not established a nomination committee which was
in deviation of Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.5 of the CG Code. At present,
the Company does not consider it necessary to have a nomination
committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the appointment of new
Directors from time to time, so as to ensure that it has a balanced
composition of candidates appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company. The Board as a whole is also responsible
for assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in
particular the chairman of the Board.

Since December 2018, the Company has adopted a nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) for the nomination of directors so as to
ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of the Company’s business strategy and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Board has primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and making
recommendations to shareholders of the Company for election
as Directors at general meetings or appoint Directors to fill casual
vacancies, and in carrying out this responsibility, will give adequate
consideration to the Nomination Policy.

According to the Nomination Policy, Board appointments will be
made on merit and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria. In assessing the suitability of a proposed Director, the Board
will consider the candidate’s academic background and qualifications;
experience in the industry; character and integrity; willingness and
capacity to devote adequate time in the discharge of a director’s
duties; and will also consider whether the candidate can contribute
to the Board a diversity of perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

Any Board member may nominate or invite a candidate for
appointment as a Director for consideration. The Board shall evaluate
the personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria
as set out in the Nomination Policy. The Board shall also undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, reviewing the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and developing and reviewing and monitoring the codes
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors. During the Year,
the Board reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy since 1 September
2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). In assessing the Board
composition, the Board would consider various aspects set out in
the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, knowledge, professional
experience and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the
Board. Despite the Board does not consist of any female members as
at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Board considers
that an appropriate balance of diversity in terms of experience and
knowledge of the Board has been maintained.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information put to the Board for approval and the
financial position of the Company.

Further explanation as to how the Company generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company's objectives is set out under “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 27 of this report.

EERMBAE
BEEeWEXRNYTCEELRZES MM
TREECEERTLEERBE O
WHIET R A AR 2 BEERBER K
%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ&%%§$&%maﬁA;
ZEIRBEEERR RITAA
TEEREEHRTE ZBER &%ﬁ.%&
%'JFJ RO MERBANEERESEHN
TASTH -MAEE EEZERTARD
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%amﬁﬁuz/f\%ﬁ\ SN
PEERAREPMIEZHEE-

EEEZ

BE-E—=-FNLA—HBR BEFEEHK
WEESZTLBR([EEE% Tl
BE]) EHHESSHENK EFT
SEREETELILBEMEH 2 TNEE
B BEETERER - Fik - UL EHK
BEEE M#H FELBEBERE &K
/%EH‘T$%)EH}\UEM' J«A&ﬂ: AR A
BEEeBR2EBATRE BENAD
%a/m#&iﬁﬁJ@é%AIﬁEﬂﬁlﬂEﬁz
= 1E%$EIH/LA%EJ—Z«<%AA/\&%D;%ﬁD’
Bk TEEN -

BEMKFT
EERUBRRAREZER

ESHRARFAERRARANAFE
ZHHImRZEE-

EECRAENFERPHERE BEK
REMAE AR EmHRAEALMEEE
MEBRKZEMBEREREBRFEHTE B
B e S 00 IR iR 2 R AR

EEECREZSREMFEEERE
o EEEERUAHRETESSUH
HfE 2 BB R AR B 2 B ISR
HAE RS o

BEBEARRMAEESRERBEMEBEN
RERARNAREZEARRAE — B
BN AREFCEEFE27EWN [EEER
WO e

Neway Group Holdings Limited f 2 & MiZRER D 7
Annual Report 2019 F

41



42

Corporate Governance Report
TXERBE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Group complied with Provision C.2 of the CG
Code by maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the Company is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
system while the Board oversees the management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on
an on-going basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the Year, no
significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the “COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group;

o Risk assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System (Continued)

o Control activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks for the achievement of objectives are carried out;

o Information and communication: Internal and external
communications to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of the internal control system is
present and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements
an inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeqguards exist to prevent a breach of disclosure requirement in
relation to the Group, which include:

o the access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations; and

o the executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the Year, no
significant control deficiency was identified. The Group has introduced
the Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP") system since the beginning
of the year. This measure was also included in the Year's internal audit
review scope.
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Audit Function

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually, covering a period of each financial year
and the results are reported to the Board via the Audit Committee
afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have
been considered during the Board’s review, which include but are
not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks since the last annual review and the Group's ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment; and (ii) the
scope and quality of management’s on-going monitoring of risks and
of the internal control systems.

The Board and the IA function conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems during the Year.
The Board, through its review and the review made by the IA function
and the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
was also considered that the resources, qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and budget
provided were sufficient.
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the Audit
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky,
and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of them was independent non-executive Directors (including
at least one independent non-executive Director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The written terms of reference for the Audit Committee is published
on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to
shareholders upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to review the financial statements and reports of the Company
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and external auditors before submission to
the Board;

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management systems via the IA function and their associated
procedures; and

o to review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
reviewed the Group’s final results and annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2019. The Audit Committee also reviewed with the
management the Group's accounting policies, the risk management
and internal control systems via the IA function and the effectiveness
of the Company’s IA function. It also discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters of the Group, reported to
the Board on material issues, if any, and made recommendations to
the Board. It reviewed the work performed and fees charged by the
external auditors and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditors.

The Company's final results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee. There are no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’
s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditors and Auditor's Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 118 to 125.

For the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to HK$1.85 million and HK$0.45 million respectively. The
non-audit services charged by the external auditors of the Company
for the Year included (i) interim review of the financial statements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2019; (ii) filling of
tax return of the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iii) professional
services rendered on a very substantial disposal of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules conducted during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬂ:

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communications with
shareholders are essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information to enable shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly
to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any enquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and
for the shareholders to stay informed of the Group's strategy and
goals. External auditors, the Chairman as well as the chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings of the Company to answer questions from the shareholders.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business.
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Corporate Governance Report
3 'M\Aﬁﬁ:

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting;
or (ii) not less than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written
requisition stating the resolution which is intended to be moved
at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on
their shareholdings and related share registration matters.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after the general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITHRAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 41, was appointed as the Chairman
since August 2009. He has been an executive Director since July
2004 and the chief executive officer of the Company from November
2007 to 31 August 2009. He is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie obtained an
EMBA degree and a Master degree in marketing from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He had two
years of experience in investment banking and subsequently moved
to commercial sector and acted as a director of a private company
for two years. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie possesses sophisticated and
professional management experience and is familiar with investment
analysis. He is responsible for monitoring the Group's business
development and to search for business opportunities in the PRC
market and overseas. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie has not entered into any
service contract with the Company and there is no designated length
of service but his appointment is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-
laws and the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun, Ernie is entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$2,310,000 per
annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. NG Wai
Kwan, a non-executive Director.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is a director of CNA Company Limited, which
has an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and Divisions 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 58, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer since August 2009 and has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1992. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. SUEK Chai Hong obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Finance from the York University,
Canada. He has more than 30 years of experience in marketing and
is responsible for running the Company’s businesses and developing
and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and business goals.
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is entitled to
receive a remuneration of HK$1,386,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an
executive Director and the Chairman.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITHRAE ZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 70, was appointed as an non-executive
Director in March 2007. Dr. NG Wai Kwan holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom. Dr. NG Wai Kwan has over 40 years' experience in global
supply chain management, logistics planning, innovation and
executive and leadership development.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Dr. NG
Wai Kwan and the Group, Dr. NG Wai Kwan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2019 until 31
March 2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Dr. NG Wai Kwan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Dr. NG Wai Kwan is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive
Director and the Chairman.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2002 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director in November 2007. He is
a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK) and a fellow member of the Institute of the
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries & Administrators (UK), the Hong Kong Institutes
of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered Global Management
Accountant.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren has over 40 years of experience
in financial management, corporate administration and corporate
finance in several multinational corporations and listed public
companies.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren and the Group, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren has been appointed for a term of three years commenced
from 1 April 2019 until 31 March 2022 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions
of his letter of appointment. As at the date of this report,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is entitled to receive a remuneration of
HK$170,000 per annum.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITHRAEZEE

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director from December 1994 to August 2009 and
re-designated as a non-executive Director in August 2009. He is
currently a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. WONG Sun Fat holds a Bachelor degree of Arts from
The University of Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in
electronic products business and vast experience in manufacturing
operations.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG Sun Fat and the Group, Mr. WONG Sun Fat has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2019
until 31 March 2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of
appointment. As at the date of this report, Mr. WONG Sun Fat is
entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2013. He is currently the chairman
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan holds a MBA degree in Business Administration and a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and Accountancy and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has more than 25 years of accounting and
management experience. He is the chief financial officer of a sizable
company in Hong Kong engaging in the manufacturing of watches.
He was once appointed as the company secretary of the Company
from March 2007 to May 2008.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan and the Group, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 5 April 2019 until 4 April
2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other
related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules
and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As at
the date of this report, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2017. He is currently a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds
a Master degree of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Bachelor degree of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. LAl Sai
Wo, Ricky is a practising accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountant and an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky has more than 20 years of accounting and
management experience. He is currently the financial controller and
the company secretary of Jolimark Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2028), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was once appointed as the company
secretary of the Company from August 2006 to March 2007.

Entered into between Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky and the Group, Mr.
LAl Sai Wo, Ricky has been appointed for a term of three years
commenced from 19 April 2017 to 18 April 2020 subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election and other related provisions
as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms
and conditions of his letter of appointment. As at the date of this
report, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky is entitled to receive a remuneration of
HK$120,000 per annum.

Mr. CHU Gun Pui, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2017. Mr. CHU Gun Pui holds a Bachelor
degree of Commerce majoring in marketing and a Bachelor degree
of Science majoring in computer science from The University of
Auckland. Mr. CHU Gun Pui has over 15 years of experience in sales
and marketing field in entertainment industry.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr,
CHU Gun Pui and the Group, Mr. CHU Gun Pui has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 23 June 2017 until 22
June 2020 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. CHU Gun Pui is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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As at the date of this report, each of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr.
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. WONG Sun Fat has an
interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and/
or its associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong
Kong). For further details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
“Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
of the Directors’ Report of this annual report. There is no change in
such Director’s interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and/or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO from 31 December 2019 up to the date of this
report.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 57, was appointed as the alternate
Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, a non-executive Director, in July 2008.
He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU Kam Cheong
joined the Group in 2001. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration and a Master degree in Professional Accounting from
The Open University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing in the United Kingdom and has over 30 years of
experience in management, sales and marketing.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Ms. NG Wai Chi, aged 60, has over 35 years of experience in label
and silkscreen printing. She joined the Group in 1992 and is currently
the vice president of Chung Tai Printing Company Limited and Chung
Tai Printing (International) Company Limited. Ms. NG Wai Chi holds a
Master of Science degree in Engineering Business Management jointly
awarded by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom. She is responsible for the corporate
social responsibility and quality management of the Group and is
currently a committee member of Green Council Certification Scheme
(GCCS) of Green Council.

Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas, aged 40, is a director of various
companies under the Music and Entertainment Business of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2009. He was the human resources
manager of Neway Karaoke Box Limited for the period from 2001 to
2007 before being appointed as an executive director thereof. Mr.
WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas has over 15 years of experience in the
related fields of management and holds a Bachelor degree in human
resources management from the Hong Kong Baptist University and
a Master of Science degree of management from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) present its annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”). All cross-references
mentioned in this Directors’ Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the Year,
the principal activities of the Group include (i) money lending;
(i) manufacturing and sales of printing products; (iii) artistes
management, production and distribution of music albums and
movies; (iv) property development and investment; (v) securities
trading; and (vi) trading of printing products. The principal activities
and other details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
126 to 127.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the Year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (Year ended 31 December 2018 (“Year 2018"): Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's businesses with analysis using key
performance indicators, the particulars of important events
affecting the Group after the reporting period and the likely future
development of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 27.
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Directors’ Report
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an aggregate
cost of approximately HK$66.7 million (Year 2018: approximately
HK$48.0 million) during the Year in order to increase its production
capacity. Details of such acquisitions and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the

Company during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not issue any shares or debentures.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to its shareholders were approximately HK$639.5
million (Year 2018: approximately HK$634.1 million), calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 300.
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DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

(alternate Director: Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-laws”), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Waren,
and Mr. LEE Kwok Wan will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “2020 AGM") of the Company. Being eligible, each of
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Waren, and Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan will offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”)

ESERKRG HERORESF
Z R

BE_T—NF+A=+—HI1" &K
RAIZEEREZRITHRAEBRAR A
MEBEEE (TE RFEHFRBEED
([FBEHERBEEG ) EXVE) 2 H -
HERD REST  BERIEE S K
EEBE3I2GBATFE SRR
B HBE ETBRITAERTETESR
SHEEFAEAE AN G MBI 2
W

() RADXAFREEC.0ETZ

EER (RO 2F=
Percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital

ordinary  of the Company

Name of director Capacity Shares held  {EZARATE&#1T
EENA 514 BEEZEREE BAF DL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Founder of a discretionary trust who 39,872,000
can influence how the trustee
exercises his discretion (Note)
BERBTAE AR EITATERNBESN
ZREEEMBIMA (i)
Beneficial owner 1,210,000
EmEE A
41,082,000 16.20%
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner 700,000 0.28%
BEESLE Em#EE A
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 8,000 0.01%
REHELT Em#EE A
Mr. WONG Sun Fat Beneficial owner 100,000 0.04%
BB Em#EE A

Note: These Shares were held by CNA Company Limited (“CNA")
which in turn is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable institution set up in Hong Kong.

M ZERHIIBECNA Company
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i)

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2019, CNA beneficially owned deferred
non-voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the
Company:

Name of subsidiary

ESERKRG  HERORESF
2R (&)

REBEERG 2FR

BE_T-NAF+-_A=+—H
IE CNAB S HEB AR E 5 E
NCIPE: S i F &

Number of deferred
non-voting shares held

MEARERE BFEEREEELZREAE
New Box Mini Storage Limited 2
hREIMEBR AR

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited 100
H o RENRI (R ED) BRR A R

Chung Tai Printing Company Limited 3,000
hREDRIBRA A

Profit Link Investment Limited 2
PRIEEEEBRAA]

The Greatime Offset Printing Company Limited 9,500

AR ENRIB R A

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

CNA is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie and the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable institution set up in Hong
Kong. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is deemed to be interested in all
the deferred non-voting shares owned by CNA in the above
subsidiaries of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, no Directors nor chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of every
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long Positions

FERR

BE_ZT-NF+A=+—HI &

AL (RRBIZEZHRIT

KA B BR

SN RARBIRIRE 7 M B 5515336
RATIFE 2 &M Fracsk 2 ik &

MR ZERIORRIAT ¢
3}

Percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares held HARRATE BT
KRR E B &4 BEERERHA RAET DL
CNA' Beneficial owner 39,872,000 15.72%
EnEAA

Fiducia Suisse SA Trustee 39,872,000 15.72%
ZFEA

David Henry Christopher Hill Interest in a controlled corporation 39,872,000° 15.72%
RIEHDEE 2

Rebecca Ann Hill? Interest of spouse 39,872,0007 15.72%
[

Notes: Hta -

1. CNA is beneficially owned by Preserve Capital Trust, a discretionary 1. CNAH Preserve Capital Trust ( —JEMH &% 5=
trust set up by Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the beneficiaries of which AR 2 e EETE EXRABREE
include a family member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable EBEE—EBRERER—EREBKL
institution set up in Hong Kong. Fiducia Suisse SA, which is wholly- HZEZ W) BB - Fiducia Suisse SA
owned by Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill, is the trustee of Preserve (FDavid Henry Christopher HillZt £ 2 &
Capital Trust. A ) A Preserve Capital Trustf) = 5EA ©

2. These 39,872,000 Shares duplicate with those held by CNA. 2. $%539,872,000/% f& 17 HE FHCNARE B 2 [A

— B -
3. Spouse of Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill. 3. David Henry Christopher Hill %t 4 2 B2 & °

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who had any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as at 31 December 2019.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commenced on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants to take up the options:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(0) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the offer may
be made to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the aggregate number of issued Shares at the day on which the
Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was 10,193,545 Shares
(restated to reflect the share consolidation effected on 5 April 2016),
representing approximately 4.02% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this Directors’ Report. The maximum number of Shares which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of aggregate
number of issued Shares from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.
Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is a grantee of the options).
Where any grant of options would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associate in excess of 0.1% of the
aggregate number of issued Shares and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of grant, in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant, such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer for grant of the option.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there is no performance target
and no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be exercisable in
relation to an option that has not been exercised.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme. There was no outstanding
share option under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2019
and 31 December 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either any directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
and the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and which was subsisting as at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group has engaged in certain connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions which are subject
to annual reporting requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of these transactions are set out below:

Connected Transaction
Loan arrangement

On 12 July 2019, Grand Prospects (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) together with Topgold Universal Limited (“Topgold”) and 4
other co-lenders entered into a loan agreement with an independent
borrower and guarantors, pursuant to which the lenders agreed to
grant to the borrower a loan in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$120 million for a term of 6 months, bearing interest at the prime
rate plus 18.625% per annum (i.e. 24% per annum). The principal
amount contributed by Grand Prospects and Topgold to the loan
is HK$4.5 million and HK$25.5 million respectively. Also on 12 July
2019, the lenders entered into a memorandum of cooperation which
governs the rights and obligations among them in respect of the loan.

A family member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (an executive Director and
the chairman of the Company) is the sole ultimate beneficial owner
of Topgold. As such, Topgold is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions
Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong

The Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Supreme Cycle Inc. (“Supreme Cycle”) on 30 November 2016.
The principal activities of Supreme Cycle are investment holding
and property investment and its principal assets are units 21, 22,
23, 41 and 77 of 1/F and the whole of 3/F, Hop Yick Commercial
Centre (Phase 1), No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long, New Territories,
Hong Kong (the “Yuen Long Properties”). Pursuant to the tenancy
agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) dated 16 March 2016 entered
into between Supreme Cycle as landlord and Well Dragon Limited
("Well Dragon”) as tenant, the Yuen Long Properties have been
leased to Well Dragon for an initial term of three years from 16 March
2016 to 15 March 2019. Since Well Dragon is wholly-owned by a
trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one
of the discretionary objects, Well Dragon is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules and the transaction contemplated
under the Tenancy Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules upon completion
of the acquisition of Supreme Cycle on 30 November 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong

(Continued)

Principal terms

The terms of the Tenancy Agreement were determined after arm'’s
length negotiations between the parties thereto. The principal terms
of the Tenancy Agreement are set out below:

Use:

Term:

Operation of a karaoke outlet or related business
ancillary to karaoke operations conducted by Well
Dragon and its affiliated companies.

An initial fixed term of three years commenced from
16 March 2016 and ending on 15 March 2019 (both
days inclusive) (the “Initial Term”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Tenancy
Agreement, Well Dragon has an option to renew
the tenancy for a further term of three years from
the expiration of the Initial Term (the “First Renewal
Term”) by giving Supreme Cycle prior written notice
not less than six months before the expiration of the
Initial Term. During the Year, Well Dragon exercised
the option and renewed the term to 15 March 2022.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the tenancy
agreement for the First Renewal Term, Well Dragon
has an option to renew the tenancy for a further
term of three years from the expiration of the First
Renewal Term (the “Second Renewal Term") by giving
Supreme Cycle prior written notice not less than six
months before the expiration of the First Renewal
Term.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong

(Continued)

Principal terms (Continued)

Rent:

For the Initial Term, a monthly rent of HK$370,000
exclusive of rates, government rent, management fee
and air-conditioning expense.

For the First Renewal Term, a monthly rent as agreed
by Supreme Cycle and Well Dragon and in any event
the increase of monthly rent shall be within a range
of 0% to 10% of the monthly rent of the Initial Term.
The parties agreed that the monthly rent during the
First Renewal Term is HK$370,000.

For the Second Renewal Term, a prevailing market
rent to be agreed by Supreme Cycle and Well Dragon
and in the absence of agreement, to be determined
by an independent surveyor nominated by the
president of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The monthly rent under the Tenancy Agreement was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties thereto with reference to the prevailing
market rents in the same district.

During the Year, the rental income charged by the
Group to Well Dragon was HK$4,440,000 (Year
2018: HK$4,440,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Lease of commercial properties in Hong Kong
(Continued)

Annual caps
The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy

Agreement are set out below:

For the year
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Annual Caps

ended/ending 31 December amount
BE+-A=1+T—HLEFE FELRSE
(HK$)

(#372)

2016 —E—REF 3,515,000
2017 —E—+F 4,440,000
2018 —E-)N\F 4,440,000
2019 —E-hEF 4,791,500
2020 TR CEE 4,884,000
2021 —E-—%F 4,884,000
2022 —=E-= 5,270,650
2023 —ZE =% 5,372,400
2024 —EPF 5,372,400
2025 —ERF 1,119,250

The above annual caps were determined based on the rental income
receivable by Supreme Cycle from Well Dragon under the Tenancy
Agreement taking into account the maximum 10% increment of
the monthly rent for the First Renewal Term as agreed under the
Tenancy Agreement and a further 10% increment of the monthly rent
estimated for the Second Renewal Term.

Details of the above transaction have been set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 April 2016 and 30
November 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 20 July 2016.

The Company has followed the policies and guidelines when
determining the prices and terms of the continuing connected
transactions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the Tenancy Agreement and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditors of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditors have reported to the Board
that:

(i) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(ii) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to external auditors’ attention
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company;

(iii) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the Tenancy
Agreement; and

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
external auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that
the non-exempt continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps disclosed in
the relevant announcements of the Company in respect of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions.

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is determined
by the management of the Group with reference to the market
conditions and qualifications of the employees. The reward packages
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff's and the Group's performance.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual duties and responsibilities and performance and
market practice and conditions.

Both Ms. NG Wai Chi and Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas, the senior
management of the Company received an emolument which falls
within the band of HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 for the Year.

The Share Option Scheme as set out on pages 60 to 62 above was
also adopted by the Company as a long-term incentive or rewards for
the staff’s contribution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the Year, the Company applied the principles of and
complied with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save for certain
deviations. Details of the corporate governance practices of the Group
during the Year are set out in Corporate Governance Report on pages
28 to 48.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and as at the date of this Directors’ Report, an
indemnity provision was in force such that the Directors should be
indemnified by Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses they may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MiZR G R D 7
Annual Report 2019

] R

AEE-—RET 2HMBRIIAAEE
ERELEMARBEERKEE R
BTRHEZHFHSTE—RETFRT
ETERRET RAKENREHE-

EZREREBRABZHFMOEMESR
SHEBLHEFTSHE YEZEEAR
AlZRBEXBE BERALZBEREKR
K5 18 ) Je it

KARERERERES L+ MBER
EERARFEEHEUWBRNFEEETLE
1,000,0007% 7T B 3 B

KNBTER X ECOEEE62HFTEH,
ZERETEEAE THARA R BRI
—IERHAE SRR -

TEER

BRETIRBEIN RRRARAFE—HE
A EmARRIMES14PrE R ERTRIZ
RA W BTHRBEKRI -ERAKEAR
FEEXEAFRZIFRHENFE28RE
FABAZBEREIARSE °

R R BB R

RAFERBEAEZTEREEHA
b RERXEER B EFEAR
AIRERSERBETHRERAJEELNE
EREVPTEAFAA A ER BE BX
K FA3Z o

ARAEREERAKEZERARR
eaBEzEERE URKEREARQT]
BRTEE M E L AR A EREBER

g ©

BAERBRE

AR F) 2 2 A4 B S A R 3 4
FE S RIEAE - RTE A2 AR
RESZENICIEL AT



Directors’ Report

EEERE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the date of this Directors’ Report, at least 25% of the issued
Shares were held by the public throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made donations for charitable or other purposes totalling
HK$133,000 for the Year (Year 2018: HK$575,000).

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to identify
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 75 to 117 for further
information on the work done and efforts made by the Company on
environmental protection and other aspects for sustainable growth
and development of the business of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial performance, operating results, business operation
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out
below. However, there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below, which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could become material in the future.
The management of the Company meets periodically to discuss these
risks, and where appropriate, will monitor these risks closely and adopt
any necessary risk mitigation measures. In respect of the details of the
risk management system and internal audit function of the Company,
please refer to the paragraphs headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” on pages 42 to 44.

EHARBRERE

ERARBI A ARESZERREES
FIRZE RAEEERE A2 &E
ERAUTEH RAFERARKDHF
BEBITRMZ225% °

B

RAFE AEBRZEZHHEME AT
EMYIB 4258 5133,0008 T (ZZ— )\
EE : 575,000/ 7T) °

HEEERREBREX

AEBENEMRRERMRER XY
AREER - AEENHREAENT
ATE BHYERERAREBAR
M F BB R B #)BE IR MR R & -
BRARBRRBRENANEEEHA
FER R N EROEAMTEMENTE
KRB B2HAFEISEEFENTEMEHZ
RE HEREABRENE—T THF

I o

FTERRRAHBEE

AEENMBRR  QEXRE XHEE
KB RAIRE X Z TR R\ N T BB = Ay
TE - AKEEHNEERRKLTH
BRERHEN TX A B TXARE
S IR RE R AR B T AASN - IR
WAEARE BLA] B E AR E bR R
RABRAEEZ - AAREREEHE®
MM ER YRR EERETEE
% E E b - W RN A ] 0 RO L B AR R
Bt o B AN~ B AR E IR R A K A B
BABEZFHIE F2HERAEEM
BERRREENMARMERE] &8

Neway Group Holdings Limited f 2 & MiZRER D 7
Annual Report 2019 F

71



72

Directors’ Report

EEERE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Business Risk

The Group currently has seven operating segments in various
industries and each operating segment has its specific business risks.
For the Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Trading Business,
the Group is subject to intense competition in terms of product
prices and production costs, and is also affected by seasonal factors
prevailing in the countries of targeted and existing customers. For
the Lending Business, the collectability of outstanding loans and
the customer network of the Group are both affecting the financial
performance of the segment. The Music and Entertainment Business
may be affected by the economic environment of Hong Kong and
the PRC as it will have impact on the consumption behaviors of both
individual and corporate customers. With respect to the Property
Business, alternatives can be found in the respective location of
the Group’s premises and thus the rentals of its units offered to
customers are subject to fierce market competition. To maintain the
competitiveness of the Group, the management of the Company will
meet regularly with the head of the respective business units to keep
itself up-to-date with the business environment.

Environmental Risk

The Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged to comply
with a variety of environment protection laws and regulations on the
discharge and disposal of waste materials, water and gas imposed by
relevant governmental bodies in the PRC. These law and regulations
govern the disposal of these wastes and impose fines and penalties
for serious violation of environmental requirements, and any non-
compliance may jeopardise the operating licences of the Group's
subsidiaries engaged in the Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Moreover, environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are subject to change from time to time. It may be impracticable
for the Group to continuously quantify the costs of complying with
such laws and regulations, and any further change may also lead
to a substantial increase in the operating costs of the Group. In this
regard, the management of the Company regularly reviews adherence
to relevant environmental laws and regulations with the head of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Market Price Risk

The Group’s Securities Trading Business is exposed to the risk of
decreasing fair values of equity securities as a result of the volatile
market changes. The management of the Company together with
the Investment Management Committee of the Board monitor
the changes of respective securities’ prices and may change the
investment portfolio held and investment strategy whenever
necessary.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out both in Hong Kong and the
PRC and are regulated by their laws and regulations accordingly. In
particular, the Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged
to comply with a variety of environmental protection laws and
regulations on the discharge of waste, water and pollutants and the
labour law in the PRC. While any non-compliance may attract fines
and penalties and jeopardise the operating licenses of the Group,
the imposition of more stringent regulations may also increase the
operating costs of the business segment.

During the Year and up to date of this Directors’ Report, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 75 to
117.
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EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the 5
largest suppliers combined was less than 30%. The percentage of
revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to
the 5 largest customers combined was also less than 30%.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to maintain a strong relationship with its suppliers,
customers, employees and other stakeholders to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. Please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 75 to 117 for further information.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2020 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at
the 2020 AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERELSHRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
report of Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), presenting the environmental
and social impacts of its business activities during the Year ended 31
December 2019, and its performance in measuring and managing
these sustainability aspects during the Year.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
integrity of this report. To the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report
addresses all relevant material issues and fairly presents the ESG
performance of the Group. The Board of Directors confirms that it has
reviewed and approved this ESG Report.

Reporting Boundary and Scope

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“"HKEX"), focusing on environmental
and social performance of the Group’'s printing products
manufacturing and sales business, being the largest business segment
of the Group in terms of its contribution to the revenue for the Year.
This report has fulfilled the “Comply or Explain” stipulation and is
centred on the reporting principles of “Materiality”, "“Quantitative”,
“Balance”, and "Consistency”. Quantitative data are analysed and
presented in a way that allows for consistent comparison.

The boundary of this ESG Report remains unchanged from the
previous year, encompassing the ESG performance of (1) Chung
Tai Printing (International) Company Limited, (2) its wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely /2% XENfE) (R BR A & (unofficial English
translation being Neway Chung Tai Printing (Shenzhen) Company
Limited) (“Neway Chung Tai Printing”); and (3) $8&3 Efal (/R 311) B BR
A \] (unofficial English translation being Kam Hon Printing (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) (“Kam Hon Printing”). These are the three principal
subsidiaries of the Group’s printing products manufacturing and
sales business. For governance section, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 28 to 48 of this Annual Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HEBRESHRE

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

Principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of paper products,
the Group understands its responsibility to minimise environmental
impacts of its operations while delivering quality products to its
customers. Both Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing
have obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certifications
for their quality management, environmental management and

occupational health and safety management systems.

Adhering to SA8000 Standard, our Social Responsibility Management
System is spearheaded by the Senior Vice President and collectively
overseen by the top management and five executive committees. Each
year, our ESG performance is tracked by a set of quantitative targets
which are monitored and reviewed by our Management Systems
Executive Committee to ensure progressive improvements in various

ESG aspects.

Management Representatives
EEEAXR

Labour Executive Health and Safety

Executive Committee
REZZHITEE /A

o Remuneration and benefits e Occupational health and

HHRAER safety

e Discrimination prevention BERRRZR
ldse) o Emergency preparedness
o Child/ forced labour 2%
prevention o Work iniu
BiERET/ TiE er
5845 T ; :
o Freedom of association ‘ Mach inery maintenance
o i

o Health and safety
communication

BEETEER

Environmental
Executive Committee

REHTEREME

Pollution prevention
ol S

Resources conservation
BRENR

Waste and effluent
BEMRIEK

Raw material

[T

Hazardous material
BENE

Air and GHG emission
control
ZREBER
BRI

Extreme weather

TR R

Social Responsibility Management Organisational Structure and the

Management Areas of the Executive Committees
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Ethics Executive
Committee

BREHTEEE

o Business ethics

o Information disclosure

BABE

o Intellectual property rights

protection

REHHERE

® Privacy protection

RIEFLFE

sEHFEmHMNEERE
D8R N AT AREIRIR
EHEAHENRE B

Management Systems
Executive Commi ttee

BB RRITEE

o Legal compliance

ERER

o Risk assessment and

management

RS R EE

e Target management

BREE

o Tralnlng management

I

. Employee engagement

ET2H
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e Supplier management
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERELSHRE

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH (Continued)

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group's stakeholders have a significant impact on its business,
or are expected to be significantly affected by its operations. We,
therefore, understand the importance of not only listening to the
stakeholders but also responding to issues of their concern. We
are committed to engaging our stakeholders, including customers,
employees, suppliers, investors, the government and the community
through channels such as annual reports, surveys, meetings, etc.

Stakeholder Groups
BHERE

Communication Channels Issues of Concern
BERE BEEE BRPR=2%—

RE -HEREAEERLE
(%)
R ESH
$%lmﬁ@%%ﬁ¥%ﬁéx%ﬁ/
B AZHEBYE-Bilt BIAR
T%?%%ﬁ%%%@rﬁﬁ&mﬁg
Mo RMBNBEBFR BE FHSR
EREBHERE BFEES EE - fUE
B REE BN RAE-

Our Actions in 2019
NENEHE

Customers

®F

Employees

E&

Suppliers
HIERS

Company website

RN

Feedback by phone
BHEREER

Formal process for handling

complaints

BRIBIRERAERR T

Staff meetings
BTIg=

Annual appraisals

TR

Website for prospective
suppliers

B R

Supplier assessment

HIERFHE

Supplier conference

ﬁiJ—EFﬁED%

Customer satisfaction

BEWEBREE

Data privacy

FURREL

Training and development
B B R

Occupational Health and Safety
BERRRLTR

Third party risk management
E=FRRKRER

Conducted customer survey
and maintained over 90%
customer satisfaction
EITREPASWIRFFION A £
NEFmEE

Developed and implemented an
annual training plan, providing
48,740 hours of training
covering 98% of the workforce
HEN B FEEIE - A
98% & B 12 148,740/ \EF ) 5
Ell

Achieved OHS targets of zero
cases of explosion incidents,
fire incidents and occupational
disease

EIBIEEW - NEEHR R
%F?ﬂxﬂ’]ﬁﬁ&%@%&?%
ERES

Conduct monthly and annual
supplier assessment

BHARBFETHERNG
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RIE-HERERHKSE

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH (Continued)

Stakeholder Engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder Groups

i EEHEA

Communication Channels

BERE

e

RE HEREREEDE

(%)

FHESR (&)

Issues of Concern

FEER

Our Actions in 2019
BAR—Z—-hEHNER

Investors

REE

Government

BF

Community
HE

Annual reports and interim
reports
FHREPBHERE

Corporate communications and
press releases
REBALFER

Compliance with applicable
laws and regulations
S ERERER

Compliance with applicable
laws and regulations

B ERERER

Support charitable institutions
XFFREER
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Corporate governance
TtEER
Business operations

EENE

Information disclosure

BERRE

Legitimacy of service and
business ethics
RigE =M REEERE
Tax compliance
MBEHR
Environmental protection
RIBRE

Contribution to the community

L W TR

Obtained one patent
MG —EEAR

Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations

BT HEBARER

Zero corruption cases
BERETER

Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations

BT RBARER

Made donation for charitable
or other purposes totalling
HK$133,000
RESHEHMARELRRE
#£133,000/% ¢

Attained 100% achievement
rate in 5 aspects of
environmental targets set for
the Year
REEMRFTAEARREFE
100 % 1%
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RE HERELSHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Striving to improve its overall environmental performance, the Group
optimises its operational efficiency and sets quantitative targets for a
wide range of aspects.

Environmental Management

The Environmental Executive Committee appointed by the Group
is responsible for identifying potential impacts of its operations,
including pollution mitigation and resources conservation, through
site inspections and reviewing documents. Management of the
Group ensures the required resources are allocated to support
implementation of the environmental management system (“EMS”)
and to ensure stringent control of environmental factors. The EMS of
the Group's two subsidiaries, Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon
Printing, has been certified with the ISO 14001:2015 Standard.

The Group sets environmental targets to achieve better management
of material environmental factors and their corresponding
performance. In 2019, these targets cover resources conservation,
waste management, emissions control, etc., applicable to both Neway
Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing.

RERE
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RREEHE
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RE #HERER®RE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Environmental Management (Continued)

Among the 13 targets set in eight environmental aspects, we
attained a 100% achievement rate in 10 targets, including targets
management of stationary source emissions, mobile source emissions,
wastewater discharge, hazardous waste, and noise emissions. For
details of each target, kindly refer to the corresponding environmental
sections of this report.

Aspects of Environmental Targets

EEEMNREEE Fp 2 o K ED il

Paper Consumption

HFRHFE

“1 2

>70% achieved
>70%EZE

Electricity Consumption

é TN

c Water Consumption
IKERHFE

Stationary Source Emissions

/
N BRI

Mobile Source Emissions

S BRESM

100% achieved

P Wastewater Discharge 100%E &

[BEIRHEIR

/A Hazardous Waste
BEBEED

‘ Noise Emissions
IR = HE AR

During the Year, we complied with all applicable environmental
requirements' at all locations where we have operations. The
management of the Group regularly reviews the relevant laws and
regulations, making sure the EMS is up-to-date and in compliance
with the latest standards and requirements. The Group was not aware
of any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions, discharges into water or land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

' Please refer to Laws and Regulations section for environment related
laws and regulations.
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Kam Hon Printing
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HEBRELBHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation
Paper Usage and Packaging

Paper is the major material used in our production process,
excellent resource management, especially in paper usage, is vital
to the Group’s operations. We procure paper certified with Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC) Chain-of-Custody Certification, ensuring
the paper used in our operations is produced from licenced logging
activities in well-managed certified forests to reduce impacts on the
environment.

In pursuit of paper saving, the Group has implemented green office
practices such as promoting duplex printing in order to minimise the
use of paper. Paper consumption is strictly monitored monthly by the
Group’s Administration Department and investigates any abnormal
consumption behaviour. During the Year, Kam Hon Printing achieved
the target of average monthly consumption of not more than 48,000
pieces of paper.

RIRRE (&)
BRNER
MEREARBE

MEREEEBRETERANIEZNE &
BHERERE (LERERER) HAE
BNEEEHER -RMARBERMNE
BRESFOBLNEHEERTER
ER MR ERIPUEREERAARRE
EARERTE WK RERMAERT A
RAEE - R D HIRBOEE -

BREERE AEBECHETHZEHA
=M - a0 EEE T ENRILAR > AR o
AREBTEIZ A NKREREE I
BAEEMNEEERBR - RAFE
WHHRERGAFHREEETEL
48,0005R /) B 1Z o

Packaging Materials Consumption (Tonne)

BERMBEE ()

8.15
785.69

The Group consumes paper, plastics and metals in finished products
packaging. During the Year, the Group consumed 3,789.28 tonnes
of paper, 785.69 tonnes of plastics and 8.15 tonnes of metals for
packaging. The increase in consumption was due to the rise in orders
during the Year. We encourage clients to return carton boxes for
reuse, reducing the consumption of packaging materials.

Paper # 3R
3,789.28

REBEBEEN B EFERR  BE
NEB -IRAFE  AEBE)EF3,789.28
I8 4% 5K - 785.69M8 ¥8 £} 128.15M8 & & 1E
BEZA OHEREEMIIBARARNFEER
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RE #HEBRELHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)

Paper Usage and Packaging (Continued)

2019 Targets and Indicators

RIRRE (&)
ﬁk?ﬁqﬁlﬁ(nﬁ
MEREHAREE (&)

Neway Chung Tai Printing
1 2 B KR

production units

FTHREEEGNRAETBBIR

Consuming <4 pieces of paper per thousand press pile boards of

72% achieved
72%EIZ

Kam Hon Printing

5 &9 E & A FHFEAETH31848,0005

Average monthly consumption of <48,000 pieces of paper

100% achieved
100%E1Z

Energy

The Group’s energy consumption comprises purchased electricity,
petrol for company vehicles and natural gas consumed in boilers.
During the Year, the Group's total energy consumption amounted to
62,216.09 GJ, a decline of 2% as compared to 63,728.60 GJ in 2018.
The energy intensity was computed as 0.13 GJ per thousand Hong
Kong Dollars revenue.

Energy Composition

BERA X
65,000 0.15
1,377.81
1,192.02
M gstse 7,118.61
St 0.13
= igﬂ: N
Fé’_? 55,000
S o 0.12
SHE 50000  55389.23 53,905.46
= 7L 0.1
255
S 45,000
2018 2019

—E-N\F —T-NF

Striving for higher energy performance and output efficiency,
the Group has implemented an array of conservation measures.
For instance, it has faded out the use of diesel in its operations,
strengthened indoor ventilation, controlled the room temperature and
adopted energy-saving water dispensers for replacement of energy-
intensive models to minimise the daily energy consumption. The non-
invasive electromagnetic scale control system implemented in earlier
years has reduced energy consumption by 12% and extended the
boilers’ lifespan effectively.

To raise the awareness about energy conservation, the Group provides
training to selected employees from each department on judicious use
of resources. The training is a pre-requisite for employees who handle
energy facilities, before their jobs commence.
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RIE - HERERKSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) RIEGRE (&)

Resources Conservation (Continued) HRNER (&)

Energy (Continued) BEIR (#8)

2019 Targets and Indicators Result

—E-NEFEERKE ks

Neway Chung Tai Printing  Consuming <30 kWh of electricity per thousand press pile boards of ~ 75% achieved

H 2 R EN production units 75%E 1%
ETHREESMHAEETHBBI0TRE

Kam Hon Printing Electricity cost rate of <450 RMB/0,000 RMB stock-in quantity 100% achieved

87 ) E) il BAREBSTAEENAEENAETHBARE450T 100% 12

Water KER

The major part of water consumption of the Group is in its production AREBZTERNHEAERBEREK NAF

processes. During the Year, the Group's total water consumption was B ANEBRBEKSELE142,222.12

approximately 142,222.12 tonnes. Intensity was approximately 0.29 W o FEKREL BT THETIWZERL0.29

tonnes per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue. The Group did not W o AARFE  REBERESEB/NKEA

have any issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the [ X e E ez

Year.

Water Consumption and Intensity

RAKEREE
180,000 0.40 GD?

Z 000 02 Il Water consumption

E] 0.32 8 i FKE

S 150000 030 Zig

s 0.29 oo \Water intensity

§f 135000  168,961.25 142,222.12 025 FkEE

=¥ 0000 020 =¥

2018 2019
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The Group is committed to conserving water resources by various REBH B EKZBEMETLNKER
measures, including regular monitoring of water consumption to prevent B THE I R/KE AR IF@ERK
excessive water use, site inspection and maintenance of water facilities B 1R 2R N 4 KGR LA R R 7K o AR
to avoid leakage. The Group will strive to explore and realise practical EEESNFEELREERGHKNER A
ways of water conservation to reach all water targets in the future. ELAR KRR ZERFER/KBEZE-

2019 Targets and Indicators

—E-NFEERER

Neway Chung Tai Printing  Consuming <0.23 tonnes of water per thousand press pile boards of ~ 73% achieved

f 2 FR K EDRY production units 73%EZ

T ENRI A E B A FE/K B TR B0.2308
Kam Hon Printing Water consumption rate of <45 RMB/person 100% achieved
5 & ED Rl KR EBAGARKAST 100%E 1%
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RE #HEBRELHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emission Control
Air Emissions

Air emissions from the Group's operations comprise mobile emissions
from company vehicles and stationary emissions of Volatile Organic
Compounds (VOCs) from the production process. During the Year, the
Group's vehicles generated a total of 0.55 kg, 86.19 kg and 7.57 kg
of sulphur oxides (SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matter
(PM), respectively.

Air Emission from Vehicles (kg)

EERERER (AF)

100

13 7.57
0 8201 86.19
0.64 0.55

2018 2019
—E-\F —B-AF

To mitigate air pollutants emission arising from motor vehicles, the
Group carries out annual maintenance of exhaust gas treatment
systems. High energy-efficiency fuel has been adopted for certain
vehicles in order to reduce friction, increasing dirt busting and
eventually enhancing the performance of the vehicle engine. The
Group also conducts vehicles” exhaust gas tests annually to ensure
strict compliance with the Shenzhen Motor Vehicle Exhaust Emission
Standard.

VOC Treatment
BER¥MERILENER

emissions.

RIRRE (&)
2 95§
ZERHERY

AEENTERERYBIERRERMNZ
B R EERF BT A E R
BRI EY NAFE  AEBENERE
EO0S5ATHE/EY - 86. 192 T RA
Y %757 T B2 TR -

Bl SOx
[iiE=Rla)

NOx
E=Kia)

PM
SRR R

R TENERTRM N AEE
BEHEHBERRERRETHE S
THEEHE LS BN LR D ER
MBBRBERERIESEMESHAE
Be - AEB B FETEMARE RPN
R ARG A RYEBERE RN

Ink is the key input for printing and VOCs are inevitability generated
during our production processes. For maintaining a low emission of VOCs,
the Group has installed an exhaust gas treatment facility for removal of
VOCs before the discharge from the stream to control and minimise VOCs

HESTHNERG A MEAEEECANHSEARRBELE
HHEARLEAY SRFEZUEAREEYNERNE ARBEELKE

REEERME NN AEREREERLEEY ARG REFER D BERIE

ZUHBEREEY-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) iﬁiﬁﬁ% (#8)

Emission Control (Continued) BRI ® (&)

Air Emissions (Continued) ZERBELY (&)

2019 Targets and Indicators Result
ZE-AFEERER ®ER

All subsidiaries Conduct annual test for vehicle exhaust gas to ensure compliance with the 100% achieved
IZiR=R)=E NG Shenzhen Motor Vehicle Emission Standard 100% 12

FEETERNBERFIONH  AERST A RIIEBER R IEE

Monitor the VOC level and other parameters for stationary exhaust gas 100% achieved
to ensure compliance with the Printing Industry VOC Emission Standard 100%3EF
DB44/815-2010 and Guangdong Province Standards for Air Pollution

Emission Limit Value DB44/27-2001

BB B AL B KT R B E BE R ) Ho M R B HER AT S DB44/815-

2010ENRITT B 1L B AL & M BERUR 4 & DB44/27-2001 ER & KRS

R HRERE

GHG Emissions B 2= g B At

The Group’s major sources of the GHG emissions were from REBNEZTREHENETEREEES
purchased electricity, combustion of petrol and natural gas used by RS R EEE L RIEAE X
its vehicles and boilers. In 2019, the Group’s total greenhouse gas RE - N -_E—NFE AEEHEER
(GHG) generation was 12,135.55 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent BEiaES 512,135.55 —EbinE = -
(tCO2e), comprising 518.88 tCO2e in direct emissions (Scope 1) and B EESENE (8E)#E518.88M8 —
11,616.67 tCOze in indirect emissions (Scope II). A reduction of 12% SitmeseEkbEEHRE (BEN)Z
is observed as compared to the total GHG emissions in 2018. 11,616.67WE — @ LI E 8 o )R =R e 8k

MEER T N\FRP12% -

GHG Emission and Intensity

BERBIRRZE
16,000 004
. 2
im 14,000 2 e Bl Scope |
A 12,000 0.03 003 S ¥ aE |
IFF X o
g JT{;\ 10,000 - \ 0.02 8 i Scope Il
j%@ 4'000 1161667 S ‘ ®—e Emission intensity
S ) P
@ I 2000 61508 518.88
O = 0
2018 2019
—2-\E —B-hEF
To minimise GHG emissions, natural gas, a cleaner fuel source, BEERVIEERESI AEEE A
has been used in boilers since 2012. Moreover, the non-invasive TE - FRERANIRES A EIEER L
electromagnetic scale control system has ensured high energy KR o o - EER AN B LK KRS
efficiency in the operation process of the boilers, reducing M EGEEERAAEEEBREFRET S
consumption of 24,806 m? of natural gas, equivalent to 53.63 tonnes BER AN R FE B KA F24,8063 77
of GHG emissions for generating the equivalent amount of energy. Ko MHEREAHEESER=ER)53.630F —

SEREERERBHM-
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RE #HEBRELHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Effluent and Waste Management

The Group ensures proper management of effluent discharge
in compliance with the Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in
Guangdong Province. We appoint an external party to conduct
regular discharged wastewater testing. During the Year, the
total wastewater discharged was approximately 14,168 tonnes,
representing a drop of 52% year-on-year.

In respect of waste management, the Group strictly observes relevant
laws and regulations such as the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During the
Year, 14.27 tonnes of hazardous waste were generated, and all was
transferred and handled by a qualified third-party collector. 200.00
tonnes of non-hazardous waste were generated and recycled.

The Group has adopted a systematic waste management approach to
categorise and handle each type of waste generated in the production
line. With the installation of the non-invasive electromagnetic scale
control system in earlier years, the amount of the hydrochloric acid
waste produced from our operations was reduced by 8 tonnes per year.

Hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity
(tonnes/ '000 HKD revenue)

EEBRRYELER (W) REE (M TEaks)

15 0.04 250

200

0.03 0.03
10

150

0.02
100

14.27 0.01
50
0 0.00 0

2018 2019
—E-N\F ZZ-hF

Il Hazardous waste

EEERY

®—e Hazardous waste intensity

BEERENEE

2019 Targets and Indicators

—ERE-NAFEERER

All subsidiaries

RIRRE (&)
BKRBRYER

AEERRSKERZEER UFE

(BRAKSEDBEMRPBRE) 2HE &K
PIEEINEBA T E BB B E K - R
RNEE  BEKPEAREAN B14,16808 1%
FTE52%

FEREMER A AEBBKES (F
Bl [E BE RE )5 RIR IR SRR SAERE
BER - RAFE AEEELEEEREE
Y4270 (2 HERNE=FTIRER
B NMERIE)  mES K EIURE FEEERE
)32 200.00M

AEBRBAERGNENERTERE
EREENSBEMETOBNEE -
R R A K IFR AN BHIRIRB R
Ak AR MEERELNEERREY
K F P NE R T 8ME

Non-hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity

(tonnes/ '000 HKD revenue)

BRERRYELE (W) REE (W THETWE)

0.5

0.41
0.39 —t—1 04

203.00 200.00

Monitor various parameters for effluents to ensure compliance with the

0.2
2018 2019
—E-N\F —ZT-hEF

Non-hazardous waste o—e Non-hazardous waste intensity

100% achieved

Fr & b8 2 7] Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in Guangdong Province DB44/26- 100% 12
2001
ELEUSIK B TH 2 HUA IR & DB44/26-2001 (BEE K5 LMWEERER
B
100% transfer of hazardous waste 100% achieved
100%E B A EREEY 100% 3£ 1%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERELSHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Noise Management

To minimise noise nuisance to the surrounding environment, the
Group has set a target to maintain noise levels at operational
locations at a level not exceeding 60dB during daytime and 50dB
at night. The Group has also obtained third party assurance of
compliance with the Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise
at Boundary.

2019 Targets and Indicators

—E-NFARREE

REEE
REERLVEHBABRRENREZE K
SECEHIEER EEEMFAREEE
TEHEB6e0N B LK E TS H B5070
B-AREENMEESE=FHET (T
EPEBRARRREBERIZE) 9
Koo

Result

®R

Neway Chung Tai Printing  Not exceeding 60 decibel (dB) during daytime and 50 dB at night 100% achieved

H 2 R EN HRE&EET15HBiR60D B ki H TS iB509 8 100%E 1R

Kam Hon Printing Not exceeding 65 decibel (dB) during daytime and 55 dB at night 100% achieved

5 & ED Rl RREZETSEB65D B R HE TS BE55 8 100%3E 1%
Promoting Green Products HEEZEEM

Striving to minimise the environmental impacts of our activities and to AEEFNBERLDHEMELLEIREDN

protect the environment, the Group has been continuously exploring
opportunities to produce greener and environmentally-considerate
products for customers. In addition to launching green products
accredited with FSC, we ensure that the paper used as raw material in
our printing business is certified with FSC, and that all the purchased
wood products are strictly managed in the production process.
During the Year, Kam Hon Printing successfully achieved the target of
reaching a 5% increase in proportion of FSC products in its sales on
a year-on-year basis. The Group will continue to seek opportunities to
promote sustainability along its business development.

2019 Targets and Indicators

Kam Hon Printing
5 & ED Rl

year basis
1EE S E R I F 1 INFSCE f b 115 %

5% increase in proportion of FSC products in its sales on a year-on-

TE —ETHRZRAEFLEERRR
N E R RERIBRE G o i B EBFSC
REREEBE GBI BRPIERPD DR %
EAVERME AR R A FSCRRTE » LAKFRT
EEENABESREERFP IR R
REIR - RAFE SR ENRIKINERE
H 4 E IR FIEANFSCE R HI5%H B
o AREEBEES REEEFERES
REFEERERAET -

Result

=+
o

100% achieved
100% 2E 12
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RE #HEBRELHRE

OUR PEOPLE

The Group aims to cultivate a people-centric workplace by improving
its management of occupational health and safety, training, inclusion

and employee wellbeing.

Employee Profile

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 1,527 full-
time employees, over 94% of whom were employed in the PRC. The
ratio of male to female employees is 53:47. 81% of our employees
are aged 31 - 50. In terms of educational profile, approximately 13%
of our employees have tertiary qualifications. Our team comprises

23% managerial staff and 77% general

Employee Profile
by Gender

staff.

EHR D HNESHE

47%

Bl Male

53%

Female

S ik

Employee Profile
by Education

BB HNESRE
13%

o

87%

Bl Undergraduate degree or above
AEFRIA L
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Below tertiary education
REUT

Il 30 or below 31-50

77%

8T
AEBEERBNEHERFREL S
I -BRUERE TR EIBIALE
AANBARRTERE -

EEME
BE-_T—h&F+-_A=1+—H &%
BAE15278 2B EE  EFH4%RA
FREA - BMHEERZMEENLLA
#)B53:47 - 31 ES0RE L EREE
81% - EHRFBR AT #13%HEAE K
HER - RMHEBKF - 923% AEEA
B 77%5E—MREB I

Employee Profile
by Age
RERIMNESHRE

6% 13%

81%

Over 50

30BRE AT 315 E505% 505K A £

Employee Profile
by Function

EREs fnESHE

23%

General staff
—RET

B Managerial staff
EERAB



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HEBRELBHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Profile (Continued)

During the Year, the overall turnover rate and new hire rate were 65%
and 62% respectively. The proportion of employee turnover and new
hires by age and gender are presented in the graphs below.

2019 Turnover and New Hire Rates
by Age
TE-NFREFRIENRALEZRFERL R

250%

250

200

150

100

50

0
<30 31-50 >50
30T 315 E508% S0 L

I Turnover Rate
MR

New Hire Rate

B

The Group strives to create a workplace that respects diversity,
protects human rights and is free of discrimination and harassment.
We treat every talent fairly and equally regardless of age, gender,
marital status, sexual orientation, race, religion, disability, or political
background. In case any discrimination is discovered, members of
the Group are encouraged to report it to the Human Resources (HR)
Department. All cases are handled anonymously according to the
Group's anti-discrimination management procedures.

Employee Communication

The Group pays close attention to its employees’ opinions and
feedback. The Management Systems Executive Committee ensures
an effective grievance system and communication channels such as
WeChat public account are in place, where employees can provide
feedback and report grievance relating to any labour matters. The
Group also encourages its employees to join unions.

100

ETI (&)
EEHE (&)

RAFE BRI ERLRTERBL X
DR BE65%K62% BB RKkRIHIER
WEE MR E D BBl B FT R o

2019 Turnover and New Hire Rates

by Gender

TE-NFRMBNSENRALRRMERL R

B Turnover Rate

64% g59% 08%

I 57% I
Male Female
B egid

New Hire Rate

MAKLLER iR E

AEEFNEE—FEEEZ T REA
N R RS AR N BR B ) TAEIRIR © T AP
RERFEHFE—EAT M wE
e MERIERAOR  EER - BR R
¥EFBESHPOAE R - WHEBRAEM
BARBER BRI AEREKERAS
BRHBHRE -FAEROREANEER
BARE IR AE BT R IR -

BERBE

AEEZYEIETINERRRE T
BEZHNITEE/MERREL AR E
FEGEBEARERSEIARE 8
TR fEHEPIRHREER T HRETME
B TEEMNRF - AEBENEEHES
MALE -
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RE HEBRESHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employment Practices

The Group retains talents by providing attractive remuneration and
benefits packages. Whilst employees can refuse to work overtime or
on holidays, allowance is offered to compensate employees who work
overtime. Matters relating to labour rights and welfare are managed
by the Labour Executive Committee, ensuring strict compliance with
all labour laws and regulations? in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group strictly prohibits child or forced labour. The HR Department
inspects identification documents of candidates and new joiners
to ensure they are aged 16 or above. If any suspected cases are
discovered, the group immediately schedules them for check-ups and
report to the local labour departments.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

2019 Targets and Indicators

—E-hhFHEREE

All Subsidiaries
FrEM B AR

ETI (&)
EBEER

KEI?ET/\,\”&%Iﬂﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁdﬂ&%mﬂb{ﬁ

AT o & B It Al ER(E - B FInTE
%ﬁbﬂﬂiﬁ?ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁlf’ﬁ BB TEMNK
BANMNEERBINTEZENEERE
BREBETEBRPEMESL AR
JERR? o

AEBBEEREIXBGIS T AT
BREBEZKBE M ABRENT DE
BN AREOR M P M 16 BR 3UA L © fi
HREMERER N RE AR5
M PEEREL R )T 5 TEPIRSE -

R|EBMA AEE L A ANBAEE R
ERBERER BELEN TER
2BEFERE 2Tl REARIA
REMRFE R RASR BB AR
BEKBEATENER-

Result
#R

0 employees aged 16 or below 100% achieved
Rimem i E BB A RO 100% 1%
100% coverage of employee social insurance 100% achieved
100%E TR EBHERRRE 100%3Z 1%

2 Please refer to Laws and Regulations section for labour-related laws and
regulations.
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RE HERELSHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development

The Group has formulated and implemented internal policies, such
as training operation guide, to manage employee development
and occupational training, aiming to provide wide-ranging training
opportunities. The HR Department is responsible for the overall annual
training and development plan, as well as monitoring and follow-up
on the training status. The needs of staff training are assessed and
determined by the head of each department in order to arrange the
required training programmes.

We provide various types of training opportunities for employees from
different stages, including induction and pre-job training, transferee
training and on-the-job training:

Company background, policies and targets

O [ 4 AREE BEREME
‘ ) ‘], Operational and fire safety

BREMBEZ 2

International standards

B RIS

Labour safety management system

BIRZEBRR

Requirements on work procedure, quality and environment etc.
THERF mERRREEX

Basic knowledge on management

B IR 77 Y E AN A

Company policies and annual targets on environment and quality
FRRRNEENRARERFEBF

Green products

REEMR

ETI (&)
EIRBRE

REBECHIEL B iEIRERSIFAR
BHRAEBEEIERLBEEI &
ERMHEZHEIIRE - ANBEREE
EREFEEINERTE L‘A&EQ%%
&Eﬁﬁim DJ”Hj(/R" ,%I-\Ii%%j”ﬁﬁ‘%gﬂﬂ = IZI
PIEE a1 R EE  NEL B E
st

IR T RIS BB TREZ BRI
S BFELE R BRI O - SR T
BRI A

Operations and
responsibilities of
the new position
MBACEEREE
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RE #HEBRELHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development (Continued)

We encourage internal knowledge transfer by experienced and
qualified employees. Training on management skills and professional
techniques is delivered by department heads or qualified internal
instructors, while training on international standards such as ISO 9001
and ISO 14001 is delivered by qualified professionals. The Group
also encourages and subsidises employees participation in external
training according to the needs of work. During the Year, the Group
conducted training amounting to 48,740 hours.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group views employees’ safety and health as one of its top
priorities. By raising their awareness of occupational safety and health
and cultivating a safety culture, we are committed to providing our
employees with a safe and healthy workplace.

Safety Principles
Z2RA

Prevention-oriented

ABARE

OHS Management System

The Group's production sites are certified for the Occupational Health
and Safety Management System (OHSAS) 18001:2007/GB/T28001-
2011 standard. Our Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) System
comprises representatives from different departments to manage
safety related issues.
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MENBBFAEEXEERARLEHE
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BIZEMIFIIAREERMNEEALTE
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BEEERZZ
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RIE-HERERBSE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued) ET (&)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued) BEREREZE (&)
OHS Management System (Continued) BERBERZEZEZERG (&)

Leads the overall policies, goals and management plans in relation to occupational health and safety
REFHABERRELZENERRE BEREEE

Provides necessary support and resources for the OHS system
RBERRERLEEERAEHLEIERER

Implements the OHS system
BiBEREREEEEERR

Organises annual occupational safety management evaluation, which is conducted by well-trained internal inspectors

ABHIREZNAN RSB ETHNFERER 2EHE T

Adopt corrective and preventive measures according to the outcomes of the occupational safety management evaluations
IRIR I 5 22 2 B T2 AT Ak 1O A5 SRRV E IE I ) #3451

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations® at locations RNEE BRI B T RSP s B e AR B R
where it has operations. To ensure strict compliance, an environmental, BROER - BERBEEESF AR ER
health and safety management manual is in place to enhance safety AEBEFBRE BEELEZERFM:
management and strengthen the prevention of safety risks. U2 BB REHLZEREE-
During the Year, there were 21 work-related incidents and the RAREE  TEEBESEHE21R BTG
number of lost days due to work injuries was 265. There were BARTIEREH265K - KA A T 1EHE
no work-related fatalities reported. The Group was not aware of BT EHN - AEEW AANBEMTE
any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations that have a TERREEZ2IERERRERER
significant impact on the Group regarding the provision of a safe B EBENERERBHARNEBREK
working environment and protection of employees from occupational BERAFEMNEH
hazards.
3 Please refer to Laws and Regulations section for health and safety- 3 RBERRZEEBEERER B2HEERER
related laws and regulations. —gp e
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RE #HEBRELHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)

Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Safety at Work

To protect employees from safety hazards and occupational diseases,
all employees are equipped with personal protective equipment in
accordance with their respective work related needs. For employees
who are engaged in toxic and harmful operations, we arrange health
check-ups before they report to duty, during the employment on an
annual basis and before they leave the post to identify and eliminate
occupation related health issues in advance. We also conduct regular
inspections of machinery and equipment, ensuring safety in machine
operations. Rectification and preventive measures are adopted
immediately for identified issues. During the Year, the Group did not
record any cases of occupational diseases.

Managing Potential Safety Hazards

The Group strives to eliminate potential safety hazards to ensure
workplace safety. We have formulated hazard source identification
and risk assessment control procedures to identify hazard sources and
reduce risks.

To strengthen management of the use and storage of hazardous
materials, we have in place management procedures to be followed
in respect of dangerous chemicals and hazardous waste to prevent
the occurrence of incidents. We also ensure that the fire protection
system is always in the best state by conducting regular inspections
and maintenance of fire safety facilities and organising fire emergency
drills at least twice a year, ensuring that fire emergency incidents are
handled in a timely and appropriate manner.
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RE HERELSHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Safety Training

The Group has continued to strengthen safety training, aiming to
reinforce safety culture and equip employees with necessary safety-
related knowledge and skills. Keeping close communication on
safety related issues both internally and externally, we disseminate
information on the Group’s occupational health and safety initiatives
to suppliers and contractors and announce updates of related internal
policies to employees in a timely manner.

We conduct safety training for employees regularly, ensuring their
understanding of occupational safety-related regulations, safety
related operational procedures and other relevant information. New
staff and transferees must receive safety training for requirements of
their respective positions before they come on board. We also arrange
specific training for employees working in positions with higher
potential risks and special operations to ensure their qualifications and
improve their safety awareness and operational skills. To enhance the
ability of managerial staff for managing and monitoring the internal
safety system, they learn more about the relevant, as well as the
updated governmental and internal laws and regulations.

2019 Targets and Indicators

—B-NERBREE

All Subsidiaries
FiEMEB AR

BT (&)

BEREREZE (&)

Z2E

AEBRBENRZREY SEZER
2L A TIRHMENT DA
HREE RPN T 2 AEEEERNI
RAONRAR B BZ YR AR RS
EEEAEAEERERERET2E
WA RERAS T AMEBEMEBERNDS
B2 EHo

BMEHMR/ETRHERZ2HFI - ERAM
PPERF B R L 2 HBAAR  Hi e
HENREREF AR EMBREN 5
BT RERE TARBAIZZEEE
22 ZRKME - RMATSEELER
R RN TEMETRIERNES
ZHRRIE I R I EEL IS
IR L 2 BB IR ERIT - BINsEE
BABREELREREARLZEZEBEANE
Hh e EEEZHEBMEENEHR
JiF B R BROA IR F R FN A8 o

Result

®R
0 cases of occupational disease 100% achieved
OFRBEBEZR 100% 12
0 incidents in relation to combustible substance explosion, fire incidents ~ 100% achieved
induced by chemicals, smoking, open flame operation and circuit 100% = 1E

ORBRAAMMERENSEHARCENE BT HAERRERE SR

A

100% coverage in employee check-up

100% achieved

100% B TEXBERERLZE2RE 100% E 1%
100% coverage in employee EHS knowledge training 100% achieved
100% 8 T #% %A BEHSHY AR5 31 100% E 15
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RE HEBRESHRE

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Community Involvement

The Group values positive interaction with the community where its
operations are located and actively takes on the social responsibility to
achieve mutual benefits in social and economic perspectives.

During the Year, the Group donated HK$133,000 in community
investment, of which HK$104,951 donated to the employment
security fund for the disadvantaged group in the PRC supporting
the development and employment of the physically disadvantaged.
In the future, the Group will continue to implement the philosophy
of “taking from society and giving back to society”, contributing to
establishment of a better and more harmonious society.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group strives to deliver products and services of the highest
standards and quality to customers, through effective supply chain
and product management systems.

Quality Management and Assurance

Spearheaded by the Senior Vice President, the quality management
system comprises three aspects which include a suitable working
environment, monitoring and evaluation of production process and
products in accordance with international and national standards, as
well as the necessary knowledge, providing the necessary resources to
facilitate its implementation, maintenance and improvement.

In addition to maintaining the ISO 9001:2015-certified quality
management system, we conduct quality testing at various stages
throughout the production process to ensure quality production and
delivery.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERBSE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

Quality Management and Assurance (Continued)

e Ensure customers'
requirements and quality
standards of products and
services
BREFHERRRBH
ERAREEZAE

e Establish operational
standards including
production procedures and
inspection
BIMIERRE BIEEE

e Assess the quality of
materials and services
provided by suppliers and
sub-contractors
SR RE R & D B AR
MR RRBHES

ZEER (H)
EE

EEERE (&)

e Ensure identification of
products to avoid mixing
up
BRBPIERIARIEBR

e Conduct quality testing at
each key production stage
to ensure conformity with
customer specifications
NEBREERBETE
BAH AERTAEEF
AR

e Conduct sample testing

to ensure the products
and services comply with
our quality standards, and
customers' requirements
ETERABR - LERE
mEBRBEEHRMOEE
BEREFEL

B RBRE

Protect products during
the process of handling,
storage and transportation
etc.

TERE - FEREWSTE
B REED

ERFREE
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B AR TERMPINEERHIE - 1M
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group maintains close and effective communication with its
customers to fully understand their needs and expectations. We
conduct survey annually to assess customer satisfaction with the
Group’s products, services, quality and timely delivery, which helps
us identify our room for improvement. During the Year, the Group
achieved a satisfaction rate of over 93.5%.

ERALERN RMESRETFBBIAE
HBR R TIEIE FF MMt - DA R M 2 1t
I ESK - ERUEBIZP - BB EE
HEERFIRROEFERER R, HE
MEETAREMR-

We engage with customers before production commences and verify
the working procedures and materials cautiously to ensure fulfilment
of their requirements. During manufacturing, we strictly monitor
the production process and take necessary actions to recall and/or
reproduce unqualified products.
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RE #HEBRELHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer Satisfaction (Continued)

We have in place a product recall control procedure to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of the recall of unqualified products. The
Recall Team is responsible for analysis of the reasons of product recall,
as well as to carry out rectification and take preventive measures
to ensure that the products meet customers’ requirements. In
2019, there were 59 complaints received and all were satisfactorily
settled. When handling complaints, we strictly follow the customer
communication management procedure which helps standardise the
complaint handling procedure.

CEER (&)
EFmEE (#)

TAPI ) XE 2E am [0 OHE Il 12 Fr LA SR 7t 131 Mk
TEEMMNMER LM - CWE KA
B oo I 2 om0 e JR 30 1T A IE R B
MEBELEE AERERNEEFNE
KR ZZE—NF HAHKBSIREK
0 PTERRSEIBIR AR - ERRIERER
B HMBEBEREFPEABERERER
B B IR R R IR AR 2L -

Rectification and
preventive measures

A IEX TR

Record
complaints

Follow-up of
complaints

Complaints
handling

FCSRIR R BERHR

e Liaise with customers e Conduct investigation ¢ handover complaint e Analyse the reasons of
within 2 hours ETRAE results to the responsible complaints
AW NFREEE FRE . Maintai department DHRFHRE
. aintain close RS RE T AEHA
e Check the production communication with e Formulate and carry out the
samples and verify customers e Recall the disqualified related rectification and

HEFREZER preventive measures

HIRT R B R A E R Faps i

customers’ complaints products if necessary
REEERTLBIERF BT EIEER
REF (fEEAE)

e Reproduce products and
carry out sample quality

checking
ENEEERALETER
mERE

[ ] [ [

BEANESE

Responsible Advertising

The Group strictly prohibits the use of advertisements or other
methods to deliver misleading information about the quality,
properties and use of products, as well as improper means of
engaging in market trading. We are committed to protecting the
confidentiality of materials of customers, suppliers and other related

AEBEREILERESREMT AR
EEMEMEE MR RABRNREE
A AR FAEENTIHERHFE - RAIK
IRFARES AR HEF  HERN
Hh BARE 7 RO B RHR R

parties when carrying out advertising campaigns.
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RE HEBRELBHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Responsible Advertising (Continued)

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of
relevant laws and regulations* that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

Supply Chain Management

To increase the quality and efficiency of the procurement process,
the Group has formulated a comprehensive mechanism for selection
and evaluation of suppliers and sub-contractors. Besides considering
suppliers who possess relevant operational licenses, high product
quality, and reasonable price, we prioritise suppliers who follow
responsible ESG practices, such as undertaking social responsibilities,
implementing sound management in chemical safety and security, and
ensuring green procurement. We conduct quality checks of samples
and on-site evaluation during the selection process.

EEER (H)
EEENEEEE (R

RAFEE  NEBY S MEAEMAE
STERAREERERBOBERZ
2 EE BE MBRFEERYENE
HORRAR B ARBEXNEATE
BEE-

HEEEE

RENRBEFNEENRREX AEH
EHIRTEE RAHEHER D BB T
EHH -BRERRBRBEERR Em
=mE - AEERNHER HFES
ERERBEANRR HELERT
M ER  AETE ST EEEM
ZERREZHTEETSE RN LRER
RERE - RPEREBRETHEAE
TEERENEMFG-

Security
Management

* Manage chemical safet
9 Y R ER

using Material Safety Data
Sheet (MSDS)
EAMEZE2HERERE
tB2ZZ

Chemical
Safety
Management

European and US Standards ER2EE

BUM R ZERE
Sony Standard
RERE

Panasonic Standard
W

HEREREE

Waste/rubbish classification
BB BRI

Emergency Plan

EEEtE

4 Please refer to Laws and Regulations section for product responsibility-
related laws and regulations.

Supplier Selection Criteria

HEEE

¢ Security management system
ZHEBRLK

¢ Control of the process of
storage and transportation of
goods

ERENNRTRERERF

e Control of the personnel in
and out of factory

BEHEAIBHAE

Quality
Management
mEEE

e Certification of I1SO 9001
ISO 900178 %

e Quality management measures
mEEEEE

Social
Responsibility

 Prohibition of child labour, forced
labour and prison labour
FIEASET  BHEEIREMST

° Safety Management
ZEREE

¢ ERBEHERERRER  FRHEERER

— e
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RE HEBRESHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)

During the Year, the Group had a total of 911 approved suppliers
and sub-contractors, of which 55 are located in Hong Kong, 848 are
in mainland China and 8 are in other regions. For management of
existing suppliers and sub-contractors, we have in place a supplier
social responsibility management procedure that lists our requirements
and expectations in respect of social responsibility standards, ensuring
gradual improvement in their performances. Suppliers are required to
sign a CSR Agreement, acknowledging their commitment to adhere to
the social responsibility standards and ensure ethical practices in their
business activities with the Group.

To ensure consistently high-quality products and services from our
suppliers and sub-contractors, we have in place a grading system
for annual assessment. Suppliers and sub-contractors who receive
points of 90 or above continue to be recorded in the Approved Sub-
contractor List. Those with unsatisfactory results (with points less than
75) are required to adopt rectification measures within an assigned
period of time, otherwise the Group terminates the cooperation
relationship with them.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERELSHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Sustainable Procurement

The Group strives to produce greener products that are safe for
customers, employees and the environment, by sourcing sustainable
products and materials for its operations. We choose suppliers
carefully and give priority to those who adopt eco-friendly measures
and meet environmental standards. Suppliers involved in green
products production are required to sign a hazardous material
management contract and provide the Group with the relevant
environmental testing reports issued by credible third parties and
other related documents to ensure the chemical safety of the product.

We strictly follow the FSC Chain of Custody management manual to
standardise management practices, ensuring the procured paper is
produced from materials coming from FSC-certified, controlled and
protected forests. The Procurement Department is responsible for
assessing the validity of suppliers’ quality to ensure the effectiveness
and eligibility of the procured materials. We classify and strictly control
the FSC materials during storage and production process, avoiding
mixing up with materials which do not meet the FSC standards.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group values and respects intellectual property rights. During
the Year, the Group obtained 1 patent. To strengthen protection of
intellectual property rights of its own as well as those of other parties,
we have in place an intellectual property evaluation and protection
procedure to standardise the management of intellectual property
rights. The general manager is responsible for the management of
intellectual property rights, ensuring that our intellectual property
rights are protected, and relevant contracts and agreements are
properly executed.

The customers, suppliers and other related parties of the Group can
only legally use the patents, trademarks, technologies and other
intellectual property rights owned by the Group with its authorisation.
During the Year, the Group was not involved in any litigation relating
to infringement of any intellectual property rights.

ZEEHR (&)
HrE@EE (&)
CIEST §2d:

AEEEBRERBRBAKEERR
M BOEEHEF BINRRLE
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EmfTARtEmLE-
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RBEEEER BERABERYEEL
FSCRFE LB R ZIRERMEOMEL
KEPEaETHEREREEREE N
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FERAEEBERHFSCHE#ETHE
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& °

A ERE
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R Bt 3507 2 RS EE #E - AP I AT A0 A
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RASERETAIREERANEERE
FY B A~ AR ~ BT M A AR A A o Y
RERA NEBEYWES MERBBERE
LRI AN E A AL

Neway Group Holdings Limited f 2 & MiZRER D 7
Annual Report 2019 F

101



102

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HEBRESHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Data Privacy Protection

The Group is committed to ensuring data security and privacy of
its suppliers, customers, consumers and employees. Internal privacy
policies are applicable to both internal and external stakeholders,
to prevent leakage of confidential documents and products, as
well as details of products which have not yet been launched. The
whole production process of confidential products is also handled by
appointed personnel to prevent data leakage.

ZEEHR (&)
BUERBALR &

AEEZORREEER TP HEE
KkiEENBELR 2 RE - ABLER
REFERN AR RINERF 0 E - DA
R IR ST I BE AR A K i R HE T
SHEMEM REEDNEBELES
BIBHEBEATRE  AREEINSG -

e Clients and suppliers are prohibited to visit confidential production areas without being accompanied by staff

BEPFRHERTSEREETRA T2 ELEHE

e A confidential agreement is signed with clients for every order received
RENKREINTERTSRERE HE

¢ A designated responsible person from each department follows up the whole production process

BHFIEE-—BATARERBALEELF

e To comply with the Employee Code of Ethics
BEsr (B TEERETAD

e Disclosure or publishing of any confidential documents of the Group is prohibited; the confidentiality obligation remains valid after

termination of services also

PERBERBEMAEENEMBE XM RERERREREREAER

e Training and inspection in relation to data protection and privacy are conducted to enhance employees' awareness

REEABERERLENEIRES UERETNEHER

Anti-corruption

Considering integrity and honesty as some of the most important
corporate assets, the Group adheres to high ethical and morality
standards and follows the principle of “zero tolerance” to any
unethical activity. We stringently comply with all anti-corruption
related laws and regulations® applicable in the regions where our
operations are located.

> Please refer to Laws and Regulations section for health and safety-
related laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERELSHRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

All employees are prohibited from soliciting any form of advantage
from clients, suppliers and any other parties that have connections
with our business. When the Group’s interests are expected to suffer,
employees are expected to reject all advantages offered by any
external parties. During the Year, the Group has achieved the annual
target of zero corruption activity and was not aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations regarding bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering that have a significant impact to the Group.

The Group has formulated a series of internal anti-corruption policies
such as Social Accountability Management Manual and Corporate
Integrity Policy, to formulate the code of conduct for all employees
and regulate their behaviours. The Group has also established a
comprehensive whistle-blowing system with high confidentiality
to encourage all employees to report any existing or suspected
corruption cases.

Once reported cases get confirmed as corruption activities, the
involved employees are subjected to disciplinary punishment,
including termination of the employment relationship. Besides,
relevant departments must propose response plans for further
preventive actions. The investigation and follow-up work are assigned
to an independent group, and all information of the whistle-blower is
kept strictly confidential.

2019 Targets and Indicators

—B-NEABREE

All Subsidiaries
FrEM B AR

0 corruption cases
OREITEZE

EEER (H)

RES (&)

FMEBIREMES {HERHRkiE({ A
RIIEBEB RO A LRRE[F
R Rz - B B AL BN R FE
£ B TEBEBEMIMBALTIRHE
MFTARE - RAEE AEEDEEE
BSHEERR BEFNERENERE
RARRRS - BhE - MEE RS AR KRR
UALEYEEANER-

AEEESEHEEEEREFTMED
EHEBRF-RIABREISHE
ARABTHIETAELARBETT
e AREBINVEY & ERE R 2 8 R
HE ASEITA B TRBEMBRAX
HIRESER-

BHRER—BEEIA/E ST 1HH
BTN LRED BREALERRER
& ttoh - BRABFI AR H AT EI1E
#E—TTANEE - A5 MIRE TER R
DY —BY/NE MBERENAEE
FHY B R -

Result
w®ER

100% achieved
100%E1Z
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RE HEBRESHRE

LAWS AND REGULATIONS EERER
The Group has established and implemented a management approach ANEFBDHIERE A2 KEES T HEE]
toward each aspect of ESG, for example, policies and initiatives to T REMEERS Bl %ﬁﬁ{%}aﬁﬁﬁ
ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The list of BiEB AR EROBE L2 - @mA%®
applicable laws and regulations is as follows: BRI ZEBENT
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRAKEER =]
Emissions ¢ Environmental Protection Law of the PRC Environmental Protection —
WY REARAMBEREREL Emission control
e Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC RERE -SRI

EE AR EMBIKE R EE

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
mEAREMB KRGS 2R E

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by

Solid Waste

hEE AR EMBIEEREYSLREN A

Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution

hEARKMBERBERE S

The National Hazardous Waste List

Integrated Air Pollutant Discharge Standard

KRS LRGBS &

Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard

EKERE HERUR 2

Boiler Air Pollutants Emission Standard

MIBARSRYHIRE

Use of Resources e Energy Conservation Law of the PRC Environmental Protection —
EREA AR KRB S8R~ Resources Conservation
o Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC RIBRE—EHER

REARAMBBREEREX

Environmental and Natural e Forest Law of the PRC Environmental Protection

Resources FREE AR MBI HRMNE — Noise Management,

BRERXARER e Regulations of Guangdong Province on Forest Protection Promoting Green Products
Management RIBRE-BREEE-
ERERMREE BIEH T&Eﬁ%ﬁzééuu
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RIE-HERERBSE

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued) EENRER (8)
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRZEER i=4-0]
Labour e Labour Law of the PRC Our People — Employee
%I A RARE S 8% Communication, Employment
e Labour Contract Law of the PRC Practices
hEAREMELEERE ET-EEAER ERER

e Law of the PRC on the Protection of Disabled Persons
FEARKMBERR AREE

e Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minorities
FEARKMBE D HRIEREE

e Trade Union Law of the PRC
FEARKME I %

e Women's Right Protection Law of the PRC
FEARKMBER S REE

e Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees
FEAREMBZB TS HRESEAT

¢ The Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong
BREERGD

e The Employee’s Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong
BEEERMEGRD

¢ The Sex Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB Rl AR 16 151

e The Race Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB TE RSB 6 f

e The Disability Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong

BRBRR B IED)

Health and Safety e Production Safety Law of the PRC Our People — Occupational

REHEZZ hEARIMBE 22 EEE Health and Safety

o Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC BI-BERERELE
FEARKNMBEFERBEZ A

e Fire Protection Law of the PRC
AR FREDE %

e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases
FEARKMBEB RN QX

¢ The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong.
BEBEL 2 REEGA
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RE HEBRESHRE

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Continued)

Labour standards

BIER

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRERER

Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors
FEARKMBEIARKFE AREE
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

FUEERETIHRE

EENRER (&)

Section
=4}

Our People — Employment
Practices

BI-EREEH

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Quality Law of the PRC
HEARKMBEERESE
Production Safety Law of the PRC
FEARKMEZEEEE
Intellectual Property Laws of the PRC
AR ARB A HEERE
Cybersecurity Law of the PRC
FEARKMBEBER DX
Patent Law of the PRC
hEARARMBEIZFE

The Personal Data Ordinance in Hong Kong

EREANERED]

Operating Practices — Quality
Management and Assurance,
Intellectual Property Rights,
Data Privacy Protection
LERR-EEERLR
& ABERE BERLRE

Anti-corruption

RES

Criminal Law of the PRC

g AR AMBEMZE

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
FEARAMBER T EEHFE

The Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong

BB LB IR D]

Operating Practices — Anti-
corruption
EBER-RES
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERBSE

Environment

BE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY REHEME
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\E
Total Energy Consumption GJ 62,216.09 63,728.60
RRHERS FIREE
Energy consumption intensity GJHKD ('000) 0.13 0.12
BERERE FREE B
()
Electricity kWh 14,973,740.00 15,385,896.00
& TEE
Natural gas m3 182,852.00 178,818.00
RIAR A
Petrol litres 37,400.37 43,234.56
o A7
Water Consumption 142,222.12 168,961.25
FEKE
Water consumption intensity tonnes/HKD (‘000) 0.29 0.32
FKREE WE AT (F)
Packaging Materials
aEM R
Paper tonnes 3,789.28 1,335.18
#oR MR
Plastic tonnes 785.69 584.18
Br A
Metal tonnes 8.15 2.00
Gl A
Greenhouse Gases (GHG) Emissions
AER B HERK
Scope 1: direct carbon emissions tCO2e 518.88 615.08
[ - BB W ELiRE S
Scope 2: indirect carbon emissions tCO2e 11,616.67 13,195.34
& FE B WE—SEALIRE S
Total GHG emissions tCOz2e 12,135.55 13,810.42
RERBHRES B _ELREE
Total GHG emission intensity* tCO2e/HKD ('000) 0.02 0.03
RERBHREBEESE W —SriRE 2
B (F)
Air Pollutants
ERITEY
SOx kg 0.55 0.64
ety Ny
NOXx kg 86.19 82.01
matm N
PM kg 7.57 7.30
£ 0% RERL NI
VOC tonnes 0.00 0.03
BRMERLEED g
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RE HEBRESHRE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued)

REMEME (&)

Environment
BRi%

Workforce
Demographics
28h
A BB

Waste
BEY

2019
—E-hFE

2018
—E-N\F

Hazardous waste

BEEEY

tonnes
Mg

14.27

12.38

Hazardous waste intensity

BERENEE

kg/HKD ('000)
D/ BT (F)

0.03

0.02

Non-hazardous waste
MEFEEY

tonnes
195

200.00

203.00

Non-hazardous waste intensity
BEEENTE

kg/HKD (‘000)
A/ BT (F)

0.41

0.39

Effluent
757K

tonnes
iz

14,168.00

29,502.30

Effluent intensity
EIKEE

tonnes/HKD ('000)
mg, ot (F)

0.03

0.06

Total Headcount

BETHAHE

1,527

1,597

By Geographical Distribution
RiES

PRC
hE

1,437

1,498

Hong Kong
H5E

20

99

By Age
REWR

30 or Below
30pR AR

196

467

31-50
315 2508%

1,234

1,062

Above 50
505% A E

97

68

By Gender
gl

Male
Bk

811

850

Female

g3

716

747

By Educational Background
RYBESR

Bachelor’s degree or above
BrEgl L

191

218

Below bachelor’s degree
BLEMUT

1,336

1,379
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RIE-HERERBSE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) REEEHME (8§)

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
By Professional Profile
RERE
Management 348 364
EBAB
General staff 1,179 1,233
—MRET
Employee Turnover Rate
EERKLLE

Total 65% 83%
BEE

By Age
RER
30 or Below 250% 154%
303K IA T
31-50 39% 56%
3158 2505%
Above 50 25% 22%
508% A £
By Gender
Workforce BEESEZE
Demographics JVEIS 64% 84%
BN EEgid
AR R 65% 82%
7k
Employee New Hire Rate
EEHERLE

Total 62% 78%
BEE

By Age
®F iR
30 or Below 159% 140%
30pR Sk AR
31-50 51% 56%
315% 2 505%
Above 50 3% 7%
50B% A -
By Gender
BRI
Male 57% 81%
5%
Female 68% 75%
%
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RIE-HERERHKSE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) REEEHME (8§)

Training and
Development

EIRBR

Health and
Safety
BERZE

Community
Investment

HERE

Percentage of Employees Trained

ZIEEBDIH

2019
—E-hFE
98%

2018
—B-N\F
96%

By Gender
B R

Male
Bk

98%

Female

g3

98%

By Professional Profile

EERE

Management
EIBANE

99%

General staff
—®RET

97%

Average Training Hours per Person

5 A P39 55 9 B B

16

By Gender
=14 Bl

Male
St

hours
N

16

Female

poyi3

hours
AN

16

By Professional Profile

EMae

Management
EEBAR

hours
N

17

General staff
—ET

hours
INEE

16

Work-related incident

TEHBEE S

cases

=H

21

14

Lost days due to work-related injury

TEBEATHEEE

days
PN

265

258

Work-related fatalities
TEMRBIT A

no. of employees

BB AR

Number of employees participating in safety

training
S2HEZ2EIEE AR

person-times
AR

2,654

2,399

Total safety training hours
2R IE IR B

hours
N

5,836

8,069

Donations

B%

HK$
AT

133,000

575,000
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR #HEKREAR

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX

KPIs

RARENIEE
A. Environmental
A RE

W&

BERFER

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BMRXMBRE HEREABSEEIER

R-EkER

A5
Section
=6

Aspect A1:
Emissions
EEAT:
R

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RKE

FHRBIRERBER PKELtH5 EEREEREEMHNE

0

Environmental
Protection

RIBERE

(@ EE: R
(b) BFHETAGEAXENHEBEREKLAD
B E £ o
KPI A1.1 Types of emissions and their respective emissions data. | Environmental
BREN | HirWiEE R E AP S o Protection — Emission
EEA11 Control

om o
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, RS RE — P BUE
BEREN where appropriate, intensity.
EA12  |REREAYRE (UNEHE) REE (WER) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where |Environmental
BAEEN appropriate, intensity. Protection —
EEA13 |TEEEEEEWAE (UNETE) REE (EH) o |Effluent and Waste
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, ;,\ii:?gigim— KBS
BBgeiE% | where appropriate, intensity. A wE
EEALA |FELEEEENEE OUETE)REE (man) o | PE2
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Environmental
BERAEN results achieved. Protection — Emission

EEAS | HIUREBIRENERLAERR-

Control

BRI ORAE — PR IE I

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
BERAEN wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
EREA1.6 achieved.
Wl ERIE A ENEBEEEZYNIE HEELENER
REFBHRR -

Environmental
Protection —

Effluent and Waste
Management

IRERE SRR EEE
mE R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERHKSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BXRE B RERANRIED
(#&)
KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
BRENER BRXMBRR HTERERBERESIER E=4: 0]
Aspect A2: General Disclosure Environmental
Use of Resources Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and | Protection
EBEA2 : other raw materials. RIBRE
ERER —BEE
ERFERER (BEER KREMEME)BBUR
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in Environmental
BEEEM total (kWh in '000s) and intensity. Protection — Resources
EEA2.1 REAESSMEE R SEEEFREEEE (LLT@E |Conservation
TREAE)RBE- RERE-SHHER
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.
BREN |BFEKEREE-
EBA2.2
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
BAER | results achieved.
BRA23 R AL R(E Ak At Bl RIS AR -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Environmental
BREXN water that is fit for the purpose, water efficiency Protection — Resources
=
HRA2.4 initiatives and results achieved. Conservation
fSREGE R ZKOR P B R - A RIR A FKGER A | B R -8R
IR FTSRR -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging materials used for finished products (in | Environmental
BREN tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit Protection — Resources
=
IHBA2.5 produced. Conservation
HXmTAREMHEE (UBAE) REEEEMNN | BERE-HHER
2 (wm@EA) -
Aspect A3: General Disclosure Environmental
The Environment and | Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the Protection
Natural Resources environment and natural resources. IRIRIRE
[EHEA3: —RIEE
BRERRXARER WEETAHRRERRAEREKERZEHER -
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the Environmental
B AN environment and natural resources and the actions Protection — Noise
=
ERA3A taken to manage them. Management,
USRS HRBERAABERNEARZE LD HKIEE | Promoting Green
AT ENTH- Products
RERE-RITER-
HE R 4% B o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERBSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BRI e REAREIED
(#&)

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

BARENIEE BRXARE HEREARERIIER =6

B. Social

B.HE

Aspect B1: General Disclosure Our People

Employment Information on: 8T

FEEB1 : (@) the policies; and

1E 1 (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—RIEE
EHEFERRE BERSM ITERHY B FSEHe 2k
BB AR LA Be B Ath 35 38 I 48 £

(@ BE: K

(b) BFHETAGEAXENREBERE LA

VB R -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group | Our People —

B AE and geographical region. Employee Profile

BB iRl EREEL  FRAEFNKMEASNESRE . BT -EEHYE
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
BARAM | geographical region.

BRB12 | iR FERERI LB RS R B RALE -
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RIE-HERERHKSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPls

EREXER
Aspect B2:

Health and Safety

[EHB2 :
BEHRZE

(%)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BMXTRR HERERBEESIER

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

—RIKE

BHREZ2TIERERREREELXBELREN:

(@ BE: R

(b) i%?%’ﬁéﬁ)\ﬁ%ﬁ%%‘%ifﬁ BER MR DI

B AR -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
RAREN ATEREMIL T AB R R
E1ZEB2.1

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injuries.
BREN EAIEEAIIERS-
E15B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
BREN adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
iE&B2.3 R PTER A R B R R B e 218 e - A AR 1T M e
Bk

BXIRE e RERRNTES

Section
=6

Our People —
Occupational Health
and Safety
BET-BXRERLZE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERBSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

BXIRE HERER
(%)

A5l

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
EREXER BMXTRR HERERBEESIER E=4: 0]
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Our People —
Development and Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging | Training and
Training duties at work. Description of training activities. Development
[EEB3 : —RmE BT BIIRER
BRRIEI FRRAEERITIERENMBE LR BUER - # FIES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and

BREEN employee category.

HEB3 | RHBIREEEREDNZIEE TS -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by

BARAEN gender and employee category.

BEB3.2  |mMRIREEENED  FEIEES RN TFIHEIE

e
Aspect B4: General Disclosure Our People
Labour Standards Information on: 87T
[ETE B4 : (@) the policies; and
BIXA (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

—RKE

EBEETREHS T :

(@ BE: R

(b) BIFHETAGEAXENHBERZLARD

BB FL o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices | Our People —

BARE N to avoid child and forced labour. Employment Practices

iE&B41 it EEERAOE RN RE T REHIST - BT REERH

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

BSEX | when discovered.

i54B4.2 MR ERBRREREREERIRERA TR -
Aspect B5: General Disclosure Operating Practices
Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply — Supply Chain
Management chain Management
JEEBS : —RIME EERHR-HEREER
HEEER ERHESENREIMERARBUR-

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BRER |(RUEHONHERHAE -

$E1EB5.1

Neway Group Holdings Limited f E & MiZRER D 7

Annual Report 2019 F

115
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RIE-HERERHKSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BXRE B RERANRIED
(#&)
KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
EREXER BMXTRR HERERBEESIER E=4: 0]
Aspect B6: General Disclosure Operating Practices
Product Information on: EEER
Responsibility (@  the policies; and
[EEB6 : (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
(=3
EmRE significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RIKE
BRMRHERMBRBHERELZS BS RERMMBEEARE
oA
(@ BE: K
(b) BITHETABEARZENHERERE LA
BB R -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Operating Practices —
BAEAEN received and how they are dealt with. Customer Satisfaction
1HB6.2 | EEBNEMRKBEHRFHE UREER - BEBEIR-EPREE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Operating Practices —
BRER protecting intellectual property rights. Intellectual Property
EEB63  |lmAERRENREESBNEE- Rights
EEER - AMBER
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Operating Practices —
BREN procedures. Quality Management
}E1£B6.4 MG ERTBERERBWRET - and Assurance
LERR-HEEERH
ReE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Operating Practices —
AN policies, how they are implemented and monitored. Data Privacy Protection
IH#B6.5 | N B E BURRERALBEE - D RAERITRER | 28 %88 — 2UREALE
JE e =
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERBSE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BRI e REAREIED
(&)

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

EREXER BMXTRR HERERBEESIER E=4: 0]

Aspect B7: General Disclosure Operating Practices —

Anti-corruption Information on: Anti-corruption

JEEB7 : (@) the policies; and BEBEER-RES

k&S (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RIEE

EHEHE PR BREFOLERN:

(@ BE: R

(b) BFHBETAGEAXENHEBERERAD

BB R o

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
BREN practices brought against the issuer or its employees
1H#B7.1 during the reporting period and outcomes of the cases.

RERMAHBITASIEEERBYEEENEIGTH
ARMEBE RFAER-

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
BREN procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

IBEBT.2 | B R BRI - AR T R EEER 0k o

Aspect B8: General Disclosure Our People —
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
Investment communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take | Involvement
[ETEBS : into consideration the communities’ interests. BT -HE2H
HERE —RIEE

BRENAHR2ERTHEBETALEMENLERBENBRELERG
B e E Bt R A et R -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

BREN ErEREE-

$E12B8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
BAREN EETHBAHAEER-

fE#EBS8.2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A REN RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 126 to 297,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of
investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the inherent
level of complex and subjective
judgement and estimates
required in determining the fair
values.

The Group’'s investment
properties portfolio comprises
commercial and industrial
properties located in Hong Kong
and the People Republic of China
(the "PRC") and is stated at fair
value of HK$220,915,017 as at
31 December 2019 with a fair
value loss of HK$17,966,974
recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for
the year then ended.

Our procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment
properties included:

e  Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers and obtaining
an understanding of the
valuers’ scope of work and
their terms of engagement;

AR EEIH

RESFHRERMNFERHE-

A

HEAAPGAMBBRRZREENSE
HeBdERRERMBABRBESM
BHREREASREETEREN B M
T ELEREREBBNER -

BANBEF R
HEBHEE RENSEETER
REWEHIEE
BMRAREMENDE BMEHEKRENEN
BRBREFZE Ik HENEFRE:
THRETATERS
EET R
REBMAE R o FEHEMNE
BENRESR
AR T#RE
[EER T EEE
EEENKEMEAS REENRER
BREUREERPE i
AREAE ([FE))
MEERTEME I
WRZF-AF+=

A=Z+—-BRMLTE
220,915,017/ THIE -
WTREBEZERFFER
GeEBEmRAMEZER
ABEAERAFEKR
%17,966,97475 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

The Group’'s investment
properties are measured using
the fair value model based
on a valuation performed
by independent qualified
professional valuers. As
disclosed in notes 5 and 18
to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining
the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties, the
valuers have applied income
capitalisation approach or
direct comparison approach,
as appropriate, for respective
properties, which involve, inter-
alia, certain estimates, including
appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary income potential
and market transactions of
comparable properties, as
appropriate.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MiZR G R D 7
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Evaluating the appropriateness
of the valuers’ valuation
approaches to assess if they
meet the requirements of the
HKFRSs and industry norms;

Challenging the reasonableness
of the key assumptions
and appropriateness of
valuation models applied
based on available market
data and our knowledge of
the property industry and
whether the assumptions and
methodologies are consistent
with the bases used in prior
year; and

Assessing the reasonableness
of key inputs used in the
valuation, on a sample
basis, by checking to the
publicly available information
on market transactions of
comparable properties,
comparing rental income,
terms of existing leases to the
existing lease summaries of the
Group and evaluating whether
capitalisation rates adopted are
comparable to the market.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Net realisable value assessment of properties under

development for sale

We identified the net realisable
value assessment of properties
under development for sale as
a key audit matter because of
the management’s judgement
and estimate involved in the net
realisable value assessment for
the relevant project.

Included in the consolidated
statement of financial position
are the properties under
development for sale amounted
to HK$42,598,351 as at 31
December 2019, which is stated
at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

As set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial
statements, management has
estimated the net realisable
value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development
for sale with reference to the
comparable market transactions
in similar locations.

Our procedures in relation to
evaluating the appropriateness of
the management’s net realisable
value assessment of properties
under development for sale
included:

e Discussing with management
to obtain an understanding
of the net realisable value
assessment;

e Evaluating the appropriateness
of the comparable market
transactions in similar
locations identified by the
management; and

e Obtaining legal opinion
on whether there is any
restrictions for the Group
to realise the properties
under development for sale
pursuant to the Updated
Freeze Order (as defined in
note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements).

EREEE (&)

BREISE

RAMET MY
RESSHEENTEE

HEERRPNEY TR EFEFG

ANBAFERRNY
EOTLRSEAER
FH 8 BANAHE
AEARTFEFEYS
R RN R

RAMBRRRERE
RZF-NE+ZA

ST-HANFERES
¥ %42,598,3517 7T
HT AR R o] 837 )%
BZBRIEETR-

IR A S MR M &
SHE ERERBRE
REMENTTELERD
BR5 i ERE
BERRTNENAZ
BFENG-

HFPBERFREER
HEEZRTOEN
EEREIERE
BENRFARE:

o HEBEN®
AT RAERF
ERSER

o FHEEEERS
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ﬁo

Neway Group Holdings Limited f 2 & MiZRER D 7

Annual Report 2019 F

121



122

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A REN RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A REN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. CHAU Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEREMSERARR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-h% —ENEF
NOTES HKS$ HK$
Bz BT BT
(Re-presented)
(xe&E5)
Total revenue Rl 560,585,247 592,625,942
Gross proceeds from sale of HEREEEREZ
held-for-trading investments FriGsRIB 4258 8,955,639 39,230,890
569,540,886 631,856,832
Continuing operations BELSEER
Revenue & 6
Revenue from goods and services REEmERS 2
LG 544,782,853 577,662,134
Rental income WA 7,310,989 7,304,238
Interest income from lending business REMEEBZ
B WA 8,491,405 7,197,071
Total revenue from continuing operations ¢ B 5 B 4L & 3 75
U ES 560,585,247 592,163,443
Cost of sales 85 A AR (408,798,120) (455,564,786)
Gross profit EH 151,787,127 136,598,657
Other interest income H )8 A 1,343,276 2,366,386
Other income Ha g A 5,717,225 8,171,626
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MR X (34,827,860) (29,784,530)
Administrative expenses THRZ (109,972,468) (105,084,670)
Other gains and losses H s Mg E 8 (24,623,820) (25,899,343)
Net impairment losses on THEENREGHNEEZ
financial assets and contract assets (B BT 1R R R (4,869,880) (11,402,625)
Finance costs RPN 9 (5.920,964) (3,098,378)
Share of results of joint ventures JEhBERNR 2B (9,268) (7,518)
Loss before taxation from REFELEER
continuing operations brEi A& (21,376,632) (28,140,395)
Taxation 1A 11 (5,979,227) (3,004,214)
Loss for the year from REFELEER
continuing operations REEE 12 (27,355,859) (31,144,609)
Discontinued operation EARIEREEK
Loss for the year from REERIEEEER
discontinued operation A R 13 (3,617,421) (7,079,906)
Loss for the year REFEE (30,973,280) (38,224,515)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEREMSERARR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF ZZT-N\F
NOTE HK$ HK$
k3 BT BT
(Re-presented)
(g&E5))
Other comprehensive expense: Hih2mEBX:
Items that may be reclassified HE o] B T
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz ZBH .
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBESE
translation of foreign operations ZIE N =R (9,129,367) (32,468,608)
Transfer of translation reserve to REE—FHRE QR
profit or loss upon disposal of RERERERES
a subsidiary (note 37) B (Wit37) (960,888) -
Item that will not be reclassified TEEHHEE B
to profit or loss: ZHEA
Fair value loss on equity instruments FHBEMEE WA
at fair value through other RAFEYR
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") ([BREMPEK
ANERAFE
FIRR]) 2R AT A
Z RN FEEE - (12,705,867)
(10,090,255) (45,174,475)
Total comprehensive expense for the year N 2 # 5 (41,063,535) (83,398,990)
Loss for the year attributable to RNRAHEEB AL
owners of the Company N EE
— from continuing operations —REAEFELCEER (27,165,061) (30,842,663)
— from discontinued operation —REBRIEEE
ES (3.617,421) (7,079,906)
(30,782,482) (37,922,569)
Loss for the year attributable to I 12 IR 25 R AG AR
non-controlling interests E1E
— from continuing operations —REFECEER (190,798) (301,946)
(30,973,280) (38,224,515)
Total comprehensive expense INTATEERERE
for the year attributable to: 7 48 %8 -
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIE 2N (40,590,247) (82,359,444)
Non-controlling interests AR = (473,288) (1,039,546)
(41,063,535) (83,398,990)
Loss per share GEE 15
From continuing and discontinued RERFBEEEBR
operations ERIEREHER
Basic (HK cents) EAR B (12.14) (14.95)
From continuing operations REFEKEER
Basic (HK cents) EHAR (B (10.71) (12.16)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R &
At 31 December 2019
RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —EBE-N\F
NOTES HKS$ HK$
Kzt BT BT
(Re-presented)
(&&&E7))
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 16 302,279,837 149,486,645
Prepaid lease payments B HERE 17 - 59,050,906
Investment properties "EMHE 18 220,915,017 239,199,410
Equity instruments at FVTOCI #8E M 2 E WA
BEAFEEINEZ
BATH 19 17,854,928 11,573,728
Club membership N 3,403,700 3,403,700
Prepayments and deposits ERHIERET® 24 4,720,010 4,411,600
Interests in joint ventures REE RNz 21 404,482 413,750
Loans receivable FEULE TR 25 23,010,523 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENBEME WE
property, plant and equipment L2 & 11,931,211 24,871,390
584,519,708 492,411,129
Current assets MEEE
Inventories BE 22 24,334,274 32,510,153
Properties under development for sale FEERTYWE 23 42,598,351 43,325,216
Financial assets at fair value through FRBEREATE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") R ([BiBEmE
BEAFEEHER])
LEMEE 19 64,833,700 87,895,380
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FREMEEWRA
BAFENEZ
BATH 19 - 14,679,744
Trade and other receivables, B NREAM
prepayments and deposits FEWGRIA  FA A
FEU NG 24 159,113,114 172,847,625
Contract assets BHEE 20 19,008,737 15,719,178
Loans to joint ventures BTRERRIZER 21 - 3,215,059
Loans receivable FEME K 25 44,575,290 80,750,879
Prepaid lease payments A HERA 17 = 1,280,138
Amounts due from related companies JE s B i N RIFRIB 26 1,303,402 2,433,094
Tax recoverable A Y B 7% 18 - 571,625
Short-term bank deposits g BRIRTTE K 27 23,493,383 23,682,998
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEE 27 208,721,286 185,786,206
587,981,537 664,697,295
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B RS IR L R

At 31 December 2019

—NFE+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
NOTES HK$ HK$
Hiat BT BT
(Re-presented)
(&E7))
Current liabilities nEBE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 K H Ath &R
LA K FE 5t 3008 28 100,146,752 108,141,167
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 6,452,993 —
Contract liabilities aHEE 30 4,635,602 3,330,271
Tax liabilities MIBEE 9,457,374 3,401,860
Amount due to a non-controlling ER—RMEA
shareholder of a subsidiary — I Hxﬂxﬁ
FRIE 317 16,716,817 17,080,392
Amount due to a related company JE — K EE R T
QL 32 165,848 129,334
Bank borrowings RITEE 33 92,168,478 86,807,056
229,743,864 218,890,080
Net current assets MEVEEFE 358,237,673 445,807,215
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARGE 942,757,381 938,218,344
Non-current liabilities IERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 48,178,621 -
Amount due to a related company JEN —REER T
KIE 32 269,169 328,478
Deferred taxation EETIIE 34 8,091,205 10,607,945
56,538,995 10,936,423
Net assets BEEFE 886,218,386 927,281,921
Capital and reserves BEAR K
Share capital & s 35 2,536,395 2,536,395
Reserves s 886,905,710 927,495,957
Total attributable to owners of KAREE AELEEE
the Company 889,442,105 930,032,352
Non-controlling interests AR A (3,223,719) (2,750,431)
Total equity 0 En G 886,218,386 927,281,921

HNFE1268 B F2978 2 R A EHRED
mEEeN T -_THF=Ff_ Himtt
ERRENZ WHATESEKRREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 297 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie & = B
Chairman % J&

SUEK Chai Hong B¢ & E
Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBEK

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z—hhF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTREAEE
Deemed
contribution Capital Properties  Investment Non-
Share Share from  redemption  Contributed ~ valuation  revaluation Translation Retained controlling
capital premium  a shareholder reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
BE-% nE k&
[ REEE RR2ER HARERE R4BH ERE EfifE EXGE REEd N FERER #if
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B o o o T BT o BT B B o o
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\5-A-H 2536395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 63252165  (13,063890) 39791222 258336387 1,012,391,7% (1,710,885) 1,010,680,911
Loss for the year s | = = = = = = = - (37922569) (37,922,569 (301,946) (38,224,515
Bxchange differences arising on translation of B SHNERFEL BN EE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (31,731,008 - (31,731,008) (737,600)  (32,468,608)
Fair value loss on equity investments at FVTOCI  EBA#2EUARATFEIEZ
BRARE A TEEE - - - - - - (12,705,867) - - (12,705,867) - (12,705,867)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FFEMBRERS - - - - - (12,705867)  (31,731,008) - (44436875) (737.600)  (45,174,475)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FERARTLE - - - - - (12705867)  (31,731,008) (37,922,569)  (82359.444)  (1039546)  (83,398990)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\FtZA=t+-A 2536395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 6325165  (25769,757) 8060214 220413818 930,032,352 (2750431) 927,281,921
Loss for the year pis:d | - - - - - - - - (30782482) (30782482 (190,798)  (30,973,280)
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ ME BN EHAE L EL£EE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (8,846,877) - (8,846,877 (282,490)  (9,129,367)
Transfer of translation reserve to profitor loss M E—FIHBAARSHEE)
upon disposal of a subsidlary (note 37) HEEE 7) - - - - - - - (960,888) - (960,888) - (960,888)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEMRERY - - - - - - - (9807765 - (9,807,765 (282,490 (10,090,255)
Total comprehensive expense for the year KF2EMZEE - - - - - - - (9807765 (30782482 (40,590,247 (473288)  (41,063,535)
Transfer of cumulative gain on an eqity REE-BHBAANSRER
instrument at FVTOC to retained profits A2 ERARATEIIE,
upon disposal of a subsidiary BRATEZ Bt hEZREER - - - - - - (68,238) - 68,238 - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=+-8 2536395 368949127 188,956,957 62400 103571033 63252165  (25837,995)  (1,747551) 189,699,574 889,442,105 (3223719) 836,218,386
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERERK

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\&F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before taxation BRELRTEE (24,994,053) (35,220,301)
Adjustments for: EAEH T3 FHE -
Write-down of inventories WREFE 791,079 52,585
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BB &
equipment BETE 30,663,694 14,349,985
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 81 T2 & 7t 18 #4 4 - 1,279,870
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment B2 W F R (619,578) (260,845)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KWBLFZ
(note 37) Wes (K73237) (11,807,968) -
Change in fair value of investment wEMEZ
properties NFEEE 17,966,974 (10,942,146)
(Gain) loss recognised in respect of MERTEERAERD
loans to joint ventures (W) B8 (1,775,100) 1,391,092
Net impairment losses on 2 5 RWRIE 2R EEE
trade receivables R 229,681 11,467,527
Net impairment losses AHEEZ RERBE
(reversal of impairment losses) CREFEIE#EE)FE
on contract assets 68,705 (64,902)
Impairment losses on loan to BERT—HeERAZ
a joint venture A E B 3,222,914 -
Impairment losses on loans receivable ERER Z REBE 1,348,580 -
Share of results of joint ventures R e /NC T 9,268 7,518
Dividend income SR PN (1,087,856) (4,667,276)
Interest expense F BRI 5,920,964 3,098,378
Other interest income H b F) B U A (1,343,276) (2,366,386)
Operating cash flows before Rt BEESEIA 2
movements in working capital KERERE 18,594,028 (21,874,901)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD (#m) 6,826,927 (7,651,616)
Decrease in trade and other receivables, & 5 [ E th fig I 3718 -
prepayments and deposits AR RIBARET 2R 9,486,539 48,922
(Increase) decrease in contract assets AHEE ()R (3,358,264) 3,133,084
Decrease (increase) in amount due from  FEUL & A 5] 5018
related companies A (5 0) 1,129,692 (1,122,638)
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BBBEREAFEYEZ
SEEERD 23,061,680 27,330,456
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable JEUSE FOR A (3 h0) 37,340,311 (49,695,078)
Increase in trade and other payables 2 5 H MR8
and accruals VA B B &t SR IE S AN 9,208,453 4,667,138
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities & #& & (F4>) 1,305,331 (4,872,028)
Cash from (used in) operations wEmE () 28 e 103,594,697 (50,036,661)
Dividend income i B U A 1,087,856 4,667,276
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREEMEH (646,035) (2,056,171)
Overseas tax paid B8 INR I (1,222,793) (2,888,847)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) EEEBE (FiF)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REeF8E 102,813,725 (50,314,403)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEBRTREB®MEK

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Investments in equity instruments WERSBBEMEEA
at FVTOCI BAFEYEZIRATARE (6,281,200) (3,134,800)
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENBEME WEK
property, plant and equipment REZE & (11,696,796) (25,760,678)
Placement of short-term bank deposits 77 /& BiSR 1T 1E 3K (320,140) (78,317,944)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits ~ f2ERZ #iSR 1T 1F 5K - 149,404,263
Loans to joint ventures HBFEERAIZER (114,163) (1,401,697)
Repayment from loan to a joint venture 45 ¥ — %/\M" Gl
ZEFER 1,881,408 669,555
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & A ¥ 2% - 5 & 3% 1 (42,286,518) (42,530,339)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WEREE
plant and equipment P15 5/ 18 1,106,418 4,647,166
Interest received 2 UAE 1,266,643 2,366,386
Refundable deposit (refunded) received  BLEAELE (BEE)BWZ
for potential disposal ARER & (15,000,000) 15,000,000
NET (USED IN) CASH FROM RETE (i) B
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B FHE (71,444,348) 20,941,912
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Repayment of bank borrowings BEETES (57,312,749) (6,672,784)
New bank borrowings raised FgiRITIEE 62,674,171 33,587,040
Payments of lease liabilities HEBEBMHK (6,265,984) -
Repayment to a related company M—REENARZER (22,795) (825,525)
Repayment of obligations under BEEmEHREST
finance leases - (182,179)
Interest paid EFE (5,920,964) (3,098,378)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REES (FiE) Fif8
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFH (6,848,321) 22,808,174
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) BeERBESEEEM
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD)F&E 24,521,056 (6,564,317)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHOzReREEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 185,786,206 199,687,987
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ExREgHEE
CHANGES (1,585,976) (7,337,464)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2AEENBEELEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 208,721,286 185,786,206
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReRBESEELEHRZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS oA
Bank balances and cash IRIT#EHRNIRE 208,721,286 185,786,206
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 46.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

LAPSE OF DISPOSAL TRANSACTION IN
RESPECT OF ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 30 April 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a termination agreement with the purchaser
pursuant to which all parties agreed to terminate the sale
and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal of Zen
Vantage Limited by the Group. Therefore, property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments and other receivables
with carrying amount of HK$80,298,804, HK$2,409,720 and
HK$5,475,000 previously included in assets classified as held
for sale were reclassified to property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments and other receivables respectively as at
31 December 2018.

—REHR

Neway Group Holdings Limited
PESEZERARAF* ([KAQ
ARBEBREFMRUL/B KX
MREZBREEAR HRINDESR
BHAERSMARAT LM AR
AZAMPRERREBLEEME
Cop:ich: NP A/NTE = ¥ S 2 E i

==
i

RRARAB—FIEEER AR - HHY
BRAAMEZEKMHEMFIBH
HIA BT 46 o

rePBmRRAEBT (B2
I-MABLTHRRSRNRFZNEEE
ﬁgo

EBRBFEHEEEZLHE
IR
RZE-—NAFHNA=F+H XA
A—HE2ENBARIEE FEI
WIEWE Bl FIERIAARE
4% F B BN & B H & Zen Vantage
Limitedz EBE Ha o BE Lt #@1E
A EABEHEZCEER
BR & % Bl 580,298,804/ JT »
2,409,720 7t 5,475,000/ 7T
MY BRENE&E BNHEER
EHEHEHMEKREBEERZZE—N
F+-_A=+—HEHF2EED
¥ HWELEE BNHEERER
H b fE W FRIA -

* EREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

2.  LAPSE OF DISPOSAL TRANSACTION IN 2. FEFFHEEEZHE
RESPECT OF ASSETS HELD FOR SALE XEERN(E)
(Continued)
Based on the requirement of HKFRS 5 paragraph 28, the BES ST EREELF55EFE
following reclassification adjustments were made to the 285&5}]%%% EREEXZEHE
comparative financial information of consolidated statement —E-NF+_A=+—HIt
of financial position as at 31 December 2018 in respect of EE;’E)&{& H_E—-NF+=
the assets held for sale previously reported as at 31 December A=+ —BREFEREHBEMRIR
2018 upon the lapse of disposal transaction during the year mEBEBER_ZE—N\F+=A4
ended 31 December 2019. Line items that were not affected T+ —HERHOBIELHEEER
by the changes have not been included. LB BERERATET DR
AR -BEAETEIEHTE Y
EREE -
At 31 December 2018
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H
As previously  Reclassification As
reported adjustments  re-represented
BEE2H FHHIBEAE KE
HK$ HK$ HK$
ETT BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB k& 69,187,841 80,298,804 149,486,645
Prepaid lease payments A EREB 56,729,796 2,321,110 59,050,906
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables, B 5 I H b fE WRIR
prepayments and deposits FENREUARET® 167,372,625 5,475,000 172,847,625
Prepaid lease payments TERHAENRE 1,191,528 88,610 1,280,138
Assets classified as held for sale D ABEHEZEE 88,183,524 (88,183,524) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S ey S

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 -2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17
“Leases” ("HKAS17"), and the related interpretations.

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16

The Group applied the following accounting policies in
accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16.

ERHTEEVHREE
A (TEEMBHREEA])
R ZEAMERT
RAFEBRFERNIHTE R
BrEs RS AR ERMERT
AEBERAFEEREATS
MEBGEAE ([HFEGTH
RNE B2 EAETHRE
R R ERNER] -

BEMBREREN HE

F16%

5 (BRMBRE AEHEEL
2EZ89) T
-ZEF3HR

BEEHEN i BA
E19% 2 517 ;

BESER REBELRRAS
EYLL A H] DRz REER
By BRE “Z-T1fZ%
2 g H] Bt
BHEAMERE

B2 EEYE

B T SRt SN TR AN 2 R A T
FIEBM WS ER R ERNEET
BARKREAFENBEFEZH
BRRRKR R RZEHa M
BREFHZBRBEEHLEER

IS
=

3.1 BEBHEERF16
7 [HE]

AEENAFEERERE
AR ELEZ16% - &
B BHREERNE165
RAREBEHERFI75H
[HE] ([FEatERE
175%)) KRR 2R -

B BB AR
163 A E BB EH
£
REEE R E NSRS
S B 51 6% 1) 18 % 15 S
GREE B TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease” and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or
accrued lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits
and comparative information has not been restated.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MiZR G R D 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

3.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as
an alternative of impairment review,;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment. Specifically, discount rate for
certain leases of properties in Hong Kong was
determined on a portfolio basis; and

use hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining
the lease term for the Group’s leases with
termination options.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has
applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied is

ERHTEEVHREE
A (TEEMBHREEA])
REAMERT (&)

RAFEREERNHTE
78 B R R o 2 Al R 2E AMERT
(%)
3.1 BEMBHEERFI6
wIHEE] (&)

EREENEHEERE
16558 1Y £ B & 51K

tEREEA (8)

NRREN D BAGERE
RS R - AREDE
AR R B AR
B RS B 1 BRI - R
AR B A B%

4.59%. B4.59% o
As at
1 January 2019
RZE—NF
—H—H
HK$
BT
Operating lease commitments RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 2 TR m 4 TH E R 91,298,180
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant HEABRER_Z—NLF—A—H
incremental borrowing rates as at RIEREIE E B E R KALIR
1 January 2019 61,295,313
Analysed as: S
Current mE 6,283,456
Non-current ERE 55,011,857
61,295,313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use
as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following:

ERHTEEVHREE
A (TEEMBHREEA])
REAMERT (&)
RAFEREERNHTE
78 B R R o 2 Al R 2E AMERT
(%)
3.1 BEMBHEERFI6
#IHEE] (&)
JEF BB TS & ERE
16558 1)+ B B 5 IHE
28 (&)
tEREMA (88)
R-Z-NF—-A—BEMA
EREEEREESE T

5B :
Right-of-use
assets
ERAEEE
Notes HK$
M aF BT
Right-of-use assets relating to fE R E B I 2 )
operating leases recognised upon F16REBAKLERE
application of HKFRS 16 HEAEREEE 61,295,313
Reclassified from prepaid lease REBNHEHEREENSE
payments (a) 60,331,044
Adjustments on rental deposits at RZE-NF—R—BZ
1 January 2019 HELeHE b) 293,589
121,919,946
By class: RAER
Leasehold land and buildings AE+HRET 121,919,946
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC") were classified as
prepaid lease payments as at 31 December 2018.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-
current portion of prepaid lease payments amounting
to HK$1,280,138 and HK$59,050,906 respectively
were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

(b) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group
considered refundable rental deposits paid as
rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS
17 applied under other receivables. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
of the underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect
the discounting effect at transition. Accordingly,
HK$293,589 was adjusted to refundable rental
deposits paid and right-of-use assets.

Effective from 1 January 2019, leasehold lands which
were classified as properties under development for
sale are measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MiZR G R D 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.1

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets
under existing lease contracts are accounted as if the
existing leases are modified as at 1 January 2019.
The application has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position at 1
January 2019. However, effective 1 January 2019,
lease payments relating to the revised lease term after
modification are recognised as income on straight-line
basis over the extended lease term.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under trade and other payables. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right-of-use assets
and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect
at transition. No adjustments have been made to
refundable rental deposits received as at 1 January
2019 as the directors of the Company considered the

discounting effect is insignificant.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

ERHIBERMBREE
A (TEEMBHREEA])
REAMERT (&)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are RAEAFEBHERNOHITE
mandatorily effective for the current year B KR EERNREREET
(Continued) (&)

3.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 3.1 EEHBHEERFI6

wIHEE] (&)

EREENEHEERE
16558 1Y £ B & 51K
R-ZF-NF—A—B&KE
MBRRKRPHERNCRERD
ERATHRE - EEHEA

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MiZR G R D 7

affected by the changes have not been included. myEehe 2 7 ERIER o
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts

previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
RZE-NF

LRI —-A—H
“E-N\E BEBMBERE
+T=ZA=t-H R E165E 1
EHRNEEE HE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment mE-BE k& E 149,486,645% 121,919,946 271,406,591

Prepaid lease payments BRNHEERE 59,050,906 * (59,050,906) -

Current assets RBEE

Trade and other receivables, B REMmEKFIE:

prepayments and deposits BRFIENRE € 172,847,625* (293,589) 172,554,036

Prepaid lease payments BENHREFE 1,280,138* (1,280,138) -

Current liabilities RBAE

Lease liabilities HEEE - 6,283,456 6,283,456

Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Lease liabilities HEEE - 55,011,857 55,011,857

* The amounts included the reclassification as stated in * EREEIEN 2R T

note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

by S ey S

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Insurance Contracts’

Definition of a Business’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture’

Definition of Material

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

? Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the

first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except those mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group's financial position and performance in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of "“obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting or
misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose
in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of

Material (Continued)

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

2018 (the “New Framework”) and the Amendments

to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive income
will be used and only for income or expenses that
arise from a change in the current value of an asset or

liability; and

. discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial statements.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “"New Framework”) and the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New
Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the
previous versions of the framework. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020, with earlier application permitted. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on its
effective date in determining the accounting policies especially
for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1
January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. When the Group's share of
losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of investment (include goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion of
the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held for
sale when the criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to the
portion that is classified as held for sale from the time when
the investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified as
held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

If the Group has classified an asset (or disposal group) as held
for sale, but the criteria stated above are no longer met, the
Group ceases to classify the asset (or disposal group) as held
for sale. Consolidation financial statements for the periods
since classification as held for sale is amended accordingly
if the disposal group or non-current asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale is a subsidiary, joint operation, joint
venture, associate, or a portion of an interest in a joint venture
or an associate.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of
low-value assets. Lease payments on leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;
o any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned. Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
inventory are presented within “properties under development
for sale”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9") and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount

commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business (i.e. Property Business as defined in note 7)
are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes other than properties
construction in progress as described below, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid
lease payments (before application of HKFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets,
other than construction in progress, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended to
be sold upon completion of development and properties for
sale are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold
land element which is measured at cost model in accordance
with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16, properties under development for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties
less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on assets other than financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets other than financial assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of assets other than financial assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing those
goods or services that have not been recognised as expenses.
The assets capitalised as contract costs are then included in
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which they
belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that cash-
generating unit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on assets other than financial assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or a group of cash-generating unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rate prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributable to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
subsidy income from government for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme,
state-managed retirement benefit scheme and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. All reqular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers, including trade related amounts due from
related companies, which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial assets or financial liabilities and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business (i.e. Lending Business as defined in note 7)
are presented as revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits/will continue to be held in the investment revaluation
reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables and deposits, loans to joint ventures,
loans receivable, trade related amounts due from related
companies, short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents), contract assets and rental deposits which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and trade related amounts due from related
companies without significant financing component. Contract
assets and trade receivables with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and trade related amounts
due from related companies have been assessed individually,
the remaining contract assets and trade receivables balances
are assessed collectively using a provision matrix grouped
with internal credit rating. The contract assets relate to
unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types
of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for the trade receivables and the contract
assets on the same basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

o it is becoming probably that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the relevant financial
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. The Group usually writes off when
there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables and trade related amounts due
from related companies, when the amounts are over one year
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. Any recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not
yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade
receivables and contract assets are each assessed
as a separate group. Loans to joint ventures, loans
receivable and trade related amounts due from related
companies are assessed for ECL on an individual basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, contract
assets, trade related amounts due from related companies,
loan to a joint venture and loans receivable where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit
or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative is initially recognised at fair value at the dates when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Forward contracts to dispose an equity investment at a
future disposal date are accounted for as derivative financial
instruments. Changes in fair value of such contracts are
recognised in profit or loss up to the completion of the
disposal.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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